
TRADITION/SOUTHERN GROVE 
IRRIGATION SYSTEM RATE 

COMMITTEE 

PORT ST. LUCIE 
COMMITTEE MEETING

July 8, 2020 
9:00 A.M.

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.traditioncdd1.org 
www.southerngrovecdd1.org 

561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile

http://www.traditioncdd1.org/


AGENDA 
TRADITION/SOUTHERN GROVE IRRIGATION SYSTEM RATE COMMITTEE 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82059623419 
Meeting ID: 820 5962 3419 

OR 
Dial In at:1 929 436 2866  

COMMITTEE MEETING 
July 8, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication.....................................................................................................................Page 1  

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Consent Items 

1. Approval of October 2nd, 2019 Committee Meeting Minutes..............................................Page 3 
  

F. New Business  

1. Review of Procedures............................................................................................................Page 6 

2. Past Due Clients...............……..............................................................................................Page 56 

3. Irrigation Financials...............................................................................................................Page 57 

G. Adjourn 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82059623419


NOTICE OF  
TRADITION/SOUTHERN GROVE 

IRRIGATION SYSTEM RATE COMMITTEE 
MEETING BY COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY 

As a result of the public health emergency that exists in the State of Florida as a 
consequence of the COVID-19 coronavirus, in light of the guidelines established by the Centers 
for Disease Control for the protection of all members of the community, and with the authority 
granted by Executive Orders issued by Governor Ron DeSantis, including Executive Order 20-69 
(Emergency Management—COVID-19—Local Government Public Meetings), 
Tradition/Southern Grove Irrigation System Rate Committee (“Committee”) will conduct a 
Meeting of the Committee Members (“Members”) for the purposes of reviewing the structure, 
organization, operation and any other business of the Committee that may properly come before 
the Members on July 8, 2020, at 9:00 a.m.  Additional information about this meeting can be 
obtained from the District Manager, B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. by email at bsakuma@sdsinc.org, or by 
telephone at (772) 453-0975. 

The public can participate in this Board meeting by joining via video conferencing at: 

Join Zoom Meeting:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82059623419 
Meeting ID: 820 5962 3419 

OR 

Dial In at: 
1 929 436 2866 

The public may also offer public comment or submit written or other physical evidence by 
emailing comments or evidence to the following email address: bsakuma@sdsinc.org, or mailing 
comments or evidence to B. Frank Sakuma, Jr., at 10807 SW Tradition Square, Port St. Lucie, 
Florida 34987.  All emails and evidence received by July 7, 2020, will be provided to the Members 
in advance of the meeting and will be posted on the District’s website along with the minutes of 
the Meeting.  The public is advised that this email address will be used solely for obtaining public 
comments and evidence for the Meeting and should not be used for other purposes or questions.  
All comments received will be public records. 

The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Florida law for community development districts.  The meeting may be continued to a date, time 
and place to be specified on the record.  A copy of the agenda for the meeting may be obtained 
from the District Manager’s office located at 10807 SW Tradition Square, Port St. Lucie, Florida 
34987. 

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical 
impairment should call the District Office at (772) 345-5119 at least five calendar days prior to the 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82059623419


meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Services at 1-
800-955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office. 
 
Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at this meeting is advised that such person 
will need a record of the proceeding and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such 
appeal is to be based. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
IRRIGATION SYSTEM RATE COMMITTEE 
 
PUBLISH:  ST. LUCIE NEWS TRIBUNE    06/29/20 
 

2



TRADITION/SOUTHERN GROVE IRRIGATION SYSTEM RATE 
COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES  
October 2, 2019 

 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager, Frank Sakuma called the October 2, 2019, Tradition/Southern Grove Irrigation 
System Rate Committee Meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. in the Tradition Management Offices 
Conference Room @ 10807 SW Tradition Square, Port St. Lucie, FL. 34987  
 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the October 2, 2019, Tradition/Southern Grove 
Irrigation System Rate Committee Meeting had been published in The St. Lucie News-Tribune.   
 
  
C. ESTABLISH QUORUMS 
 
The following Committee Members were in attendance: 
 
Tradition CDD #1 (Non-Voting) & Southern Grove CDD #5: Greg Pettibon  
 
Tradition CDD #2; #7, #8: Jared Shaver 
 
Tradition CDD #3: Isie Steinberg 
 
Tradition CDD #4: Gail Cost 
 
Tradition CDD #5 (Chair): Frank Webster 
 
Tradition CDD #6: Jerry Krbec 
 
Also, in attendance were: B. Frank Sakuma, Jr., and Jesse Wargo, Andrew Karmeris of Special 
District Services, Inc., District Counsel: Dan Harrell; District Engineer: Kelly Cranford with 
Culpepper and Terpening and Jeff Wilson with Raftelis. (see attached sign-in sheet). 
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.  
 
E. CONSENT ITEMS 

1.   Approval of the Minutes of the August 11, 2017 Committee Meeting 

2.   Approval of the Minutes of the June 11, 2018 Committee Meeting  

3



A motion was made by Mr. Steinberg, seconded by Mr. Pettibon and passed unanimously to 
approve all items under Consent.  
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Irrigation System Rate Study – Fiscal Year 2019 
 
Committee members discussed elements of the rate study, including but not limited to the 
following: 
 

• Irrigated acres vs. metered 
• History of the sale of the utility to Tradition CDD No. 1 
• Operational costs 
• Miscellaneous expenses 
• Revenues 
• Impact to customers with existing stand still agreements and how that will impact 

communities 
• Irrigated acres vs. non-irrigated preserves 
• Existing and expansion areas of the system 
• Timing of the rate increases 
• Determining non-irrigated open space for billing purposes 

 
Members of the public made the following comments: 
 

• Norm Ytkin, of Heritage Oaks, asked why a reserve fund is needed. He also 
suggested that meters would be the fairest way of billing the irrigation water. Mr. 
Ytkin would like a chart of irrigated acreage per each CDD community. 

 
• Jacob Ensor, Attorney for Heritage Oaks HOA, asked what’s the disadvantage of 

using meters for billing. 
  

2. Develop Recommendation(s) to Tradition CDD No. 1 

A motion was made by Mr. Steinberg, seconded by Mr. Krbec and passed with a 6 – 2 vote to 
recommend that Tradition CDD No. 1 adopt the changes to the irrigation rules and tariffs as 
detailed in the Irrigation Rate Study 2019.  
 

1) Southern Grove CDD #5: Greg Pettibon - Yes 
 

2) Tradition CDD #2: Jared Shaver - Yes 
 

3) Tradition CDD #7: Jared Shaver - Yes 
 

4) Tradition CDD #8: Jared Shaver - Yes 
 

5) Tradition CDD #3: Isie Steinberg - Yes 
 

6) Tradition CDD #4: Gail Cost - No 

4



 
7) Tradition CDD #5: (Chair): Frank Webster - No 

 
8) Tradition CDD #6: Jerry Krbec - Yes 

 
 
G.      ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Steinberg moved for adjournment 
at 11:14a.m., Ms. Pettibon seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
 
  
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary                                                         Chairperson 
 

5



 
 
 

IRRIGATION WATER RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
 

TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 

10489 SW MEETING STREET 
PORT ST. LUCIE, FLORIDA 

34982 (772) 340‐3500 
(772) 340‐1079 FAX 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective Date:  September 1, 2020 
 
 
 

Style Definition: TOC 1: Tab stops:  0.46", Left +  6.8",
Right,Leader: …

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: IRRIGATION COMPANY, LLC 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Cambria Math

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Cambria Math

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: April 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: RM:7245017:5¶

6



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

 

Table of Contents 
1.0 TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS .................................................................................. 4 

2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................................. 5 

3.0 APPLICATION TYPE ............................................................................................................................. 5 

4.0 APPLICATION SIGNATURE ................................................................................................................ 5 

5.0 APPLICATION BY AGENTS ................................................................................................................ 5 

6.0 APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE ................................................ 6 

7.0 WITHHOLDING SERVICE.................................................................................................................... 6 

8.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION ...................................................................................................................... 6 

9.0 LIMITATION OF USE ............................................................................................................................ 7 

10.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE ................................................................................................................. 7 

11.0 TYPE AND MAINTENANCE ................................................................................................................ 7 

12.0 CHANGE  OF  CUSTOMER'S  INSTALLATION ............................................................................... 8 

13.0 INSPECTION OF CUSTOMER'S INSTALLATION ........................................................................... 8 

14.0 PROTECTION OF DISTRICT'S PROPERTY .................................................................................... 8 

15.0 ACCESS TO PREMISES ...................................................................................................................... 8 

16.0 RIGHT OF WAY OR EASEMENTS ................................................................................................... 8 

17.0 BILLING PERIODS ................................................................................................................................ 9 

18.0 DELINQUENT BILLS ............................................................................................................................. 9 

19.0 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY ................................................................................................................ 9 

19.1 FOR INDIVIDUAL COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS ........................................................................ 9 

19.2 FOR HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION/MASTER COMMERCIAL ASSOCIATION ............... 9 

20.0 UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS .................................................................................................. 10 

21.0 METERS ................................................................................................................................................ 10 

22.0 ALL WATER THROUGH METER ...................................................................................................... 10 

23.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS ................................................................................................................... 10 

24.0 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT‐ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT .............................................................. 10 

25.0 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ....................................................................................................................... 11 

26.0 REQUEST FOR METER TEST BY CUSTOMER ........................................................................... 11 

27.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER ERROR ........................................................................... 11 

28.0 FAST METERS ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

29.0 METER ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................... 11 

30.0 QUALITY OF WATER ......................................................................................................................... 12 

31.0 MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES AND REIMBURSEMENTS. ........................................................ 12 

Deleted: Index of Rules and Regulations¶
1.0 TECHNICAL TERMS AND 
ABBREVIATIONS 4¶
2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION 5¶
3.0 SIGNED APPLICATION 
NECESSARY 5¶
4.0 APPLICATION BY AGENTS 5¶
5.0 APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR 
IRRIGATION SERVICE 5¶
6.0 WITHHOLDING SERVICE 5¶
7.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 5¶
8.0 LIMITATION OF USE 6¶
9.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE 6¶
10.0 TYPE AND MAINTENANCE 7¶
11.0 CHANGE OF CUSTOMER'S 
INSTALLATION 7¶
12.0 INSPECTION OF CUSTOMER'S 
INSTALLATION 7¶
13.0 PROTECTION OF 
COMPANYDISTRICT'S PROPERTY 7¶
14.0 ACCESS TO PREMISES 7¶
15.0 RIGHT OF WAY OR EASEMENTS 8¶
16.0 BILLING PERIODS 8¶
17.0 DELINQUENT BILLS 8¶
18.0 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY 8¶
19.0 UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS 8¶
20.0 METERS 9¶
21.0 ALL WATER THROUGH METER 9¶
22.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS 9¶
23.0 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT‐
ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT 9¶
24.0 REFUND OF DEPOSIT 10¶
25.0 REQUEST FOR METER TEST BY 
CUSTOMER 10¶
26.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER 
ERROR 10¶
27.0 FAST METERS 10¶
28.0 METER ACCURACY 
REQUIREMENTS 10¶
29.0 QUALITY OF WATER 11¶
30.0 MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES AND 
REIMBURSEMENTS. 11¶
31.0 WATERING RESTRICTIONS 11¶
32.0 GENERAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM 
OPERATING PARAMETERS 11¶
33.0 IRRIGATION SCHEDULE 13¶
34.0 RATE SCHEDULE 
ADJUSTMENTS 13¶
35.0 SYSTEM CAPACITY CHARGE 13¶
36.0 RESERVATION OF CAPACITY 14¶
37.0 GUARANTEED REVENUES 14¶
38.0 SCHEDULE OF IRRIGATION RATES, ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

7



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

32.0 WATERING RESTRICTIONS ............................................................................................................ 12 

33.0 GENERAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM OPERATING PARAMETERS .............................................. 13 

34.0 IRRIGATION SCHEDULE .................................................................................................................. 14 

35.0 RATE SCHEDULE ADJUSTMENTS ................................................................................................ 14 

36.0 SYSTEM CAPACITY CHARGE ......................................................................................................... 15 

37.0 RESERVATION OF CAPACITY ........................................................................................................ 15 

38.0 GUARANTEED REVENUES‐ ............................................................................................................ 15 

39.0 WATER CONSERVATION POLICY ................................................................................................. 15 

 
Appendix A - Rates, Fees, and Charges 
 
Appendix B – Standard Forms

Deleted: 1.0 TECHNICAL TERMS AND 
ABBREVIATIONS – 4¶
18.0 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY – 8¶
Table 2 14¶
Tradition Irrigation  Service Sizing 14¶
38.0 SCHEDULE OF IRRIGATION RATES, 
MICELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES, AND BILLING 
INFORMATION (subject to adjustment from time to 
time) 16¶
INDEX OF STANDARD FORMS 18¶
APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION 
SERVICE 21¶

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

8



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

1.0 TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS  
“AVERAGE METER ERROR” ‐ The algebraic average of the errors determined for the 
minimum, intermediate, and maximum test flowrates, where the meter error is calculated as 
(Vi‐Va)/Va X 100. Vi is the indicated volume read from the meter register. Va is the actual 
volume of water passed through the meter for a given duration. 

 
“BASE FACILITY CHARGE” – minimum monthly charge for per irrigated acre for providing 
irrigation water service to the Customer. 

 
“District” – Tradition Community Development Disctrict, it’s successor’s or assigns. 

 
“CONSUMER” – Any person, entity, firm, association, corporation, government agency or 
similar organization directly supplied with irrigation water service by the District. 

 
“CUSTOMER” ‐ Means the person, entity, firm, association or corporation who has made 
application for irrigation water service or entered into an agreement to receive irrigation water 
service from the District and who is liable for the payment of that irrigation water service. 

 
“CUSTOMER’S INSTALLATION” – All pipes, shut‐offs, valves, fixtures and appliances or 
apparatus of every kind and nature used in connection with or forming a part of an installation 
for utilizing irrigation water for any purpose ordinarily located on the Customer’s side of the 
“Point of Delivery”, whether such installation is owned by Customer, or used by Consumer 
under lease or otherwise. 

 
“IRRIGATION WATER CAPACITY” – shall be the volume of irrigation water generated from 
the physically constructed water treatment and distribution facilities available for service. 

 
“MAIN” – Shall refer to a pipe, conduit, or other facility installed to convey irrigation water 
services to individual service lines or to other mains to the “Point of Delivery” outside of the 
Customer property unless located within a recorded easement acceptable to the District. 

 
“POINT OF DELIVERY” – The point where the District’s pipes or meters are connected with 
pipes of the Customer. 

 
“RATE SCHEDULE” – Refers to rates or charges for the particular classification of service 
as established by the District from time to time. 

 
“RECLAIM WATER” – Water that is treated wastewater effluent from the City of Port St. 
Lucie’s waste water treatment plants or other water utilized by District to provide irrigation 
water service to the Customer. 

 
“REGULAR WORKING HOURS” – shall be Monday through Friday from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M., except holidays established by the District. 

“USAGE CHARGE” – monthly charge for irrigation water consumption at the current rate per 
1,000 gallons of water consumed. 

Deleted: ¶ ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: 1.0 

Deleted: –

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: Tradition Irrigation Company, LLC

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

9



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION  
To the extent of inconsistency between the District's Rules and Regulations, with any Statute, 
Law or Ordinance, then such Statute, Law or Ordinance, shall control to the extent of such 
inconsistency. These Rules and Regulations are a part of the rate schedules, applications and 
contracts of the District, and in the absence of specific written agreement to the contrary, they 
apply without modifications or change to each and every Customer to whom the District renders 
irrigation water service. 

In the event that a portion of these Rules and Regulations are declared unconstitutional or 
void for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Rules and Regulations for irrigation water 
service unless such court order or decision shall so direct. 

3.0 APPLICATION TYPE  
Customers for irrigation water service will be separated into three tiers that will be determined 
by the method in which the irrigation water is provided to the project site. 

 
3.1 Tier One – Customer connects to an existing irrigation main owned and maintained 

by the District. The Customer will install a Controller/Piccolo device, an irrigation 
meter, and may be required to provide a telemetry system depending on the meter’s 
proximity from surrounding Irrigation telemetry systems. 

 
3.2 Tier Two – Customer connects to the District’s water supply, including lakes or 

canals, through a remote District owned pump station. The District maintains the 
pump station and Customer would be responsible for the distribution.  

 
3.3 Tier Three – Customer connects to the District’s water supply including lakes, canals  

or from a properly permitted well. Customer owns and maintain the pump station and 
distribution System. If irrigated area determined by the District, in consultation with 
SRWMD to require significant withdrawal from District groundwater sources, the 
customer would be required to install a meter record actual water use. The Customer 
may be required to provide a telemetry system depending on the meter’s proximity 
to surrounding Irrigation telemetry systems. 

 
4.0 APPLICATION SIGNATURE  

Irrigation water service is furnished only upon signed application or agreement accepted by 
the District and the conditions of such application or agreements are binding upon the 
Customer as well as upon the District. A copy of the application for irrigation water service 
is included herein. Payment of all fees will be required with the application. See Section 36 
Schedule of Irrigation Rates. Initiation of service and billing will begin on the date the meter 
is installed. 

5.0 APPLICATION BY AGENTS  
 Applications for irrigation water service requested by persons, firms, entities, partnerships, 
associations, corporations, and others, shall be rendered only by duly authorized parties. 
When irrigation water service is rendered under agreement, or agreements, entered into 
between the District and an agent of the principal, the use of such irrigation water service by 
the principal shall constitute full and complete ratification by the principal of the agreement 

Deleted: 2.0 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: – 

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company…istrict's Rules and Regulations, ...

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted ...
Deleted: The …ustomer will ...

Formatted ...
Deleted: would withdraw

Formatted ...
Deleted: water from 

Formatted ...
Deleted:  

Formatted ...
Deleted: would 

Formatted ...
Moved down [1]: The Customer may be required 

Deleted: Customer would withdraw water from ...
Formatted ...

Deleted:  

Formatted ...
Moved (insertion) [1]

Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Deleted: 3.0 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: SIGNED 

Deleted: NECESSARY 

Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company…istrict and the conditions of ...

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 4.0 

Deleted: ‐

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

10



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

or agreements entered into between agent and the District and under which such irrigation 
water service is rendered. 

6.0 APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE  
Upon the Application and Agreement for Irrigation Service being signed by Customer and 
District, the obligations of Customer under such Application shall be binding upon the 
Customer, its successors and assigns. The District shall not be required to enter into an 
Application and Agreement for Irrigation Service prior to the Customer obtaining an 
Environmental Resources Permit from SFWMD for the area to be serviced. 

7.0 WITHHOLDING SERVICE 
The District may withhold or discontinue irrigation water service rendered under application 
made by any member or agent of a household, association, organization or business unless 
all prior indebtedness to the District of such household, association, organization or business 
for irrigation water service has been settled in full. Service may also be discontinued for any 
violation by the Customer of any rule or regulation set forth herein. The District will provide 
a written notice to the Customer of its intent to withhold service ten (10) days prior to the 
date service will be withheld. The notice will state the reason for withholding service, a 
demand for cure, and the date service will be withheld if such cure is not completed by 
Customer. 

8.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
Any dispute related to the application for Irrigation Service, the rules and regulations (as 
amended), and/or Customer agreement(s)including but not limited to rates for supply and 
delivery of irrigation water and related services, irrigation water allocation, irrigation water 
pressure, and irrigation water schedules (except payment of monies owed) that the Customer 
and District cannot resolve amongst themselves shall be submitted to binding arbitration 
through an alternate dispute resolution provider licensed and certified to conduct binding 
arbitration in the State of Florida. Such District shall be selected by mutual agreement by the 
parties. Such arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to and in accordance with the Florida 
Arbitration Act as set forth in Chapter 682, Florida Statutes. If the parties cannot mutually 
agree on the selection of an arbitrator or arbitrators, then either party may apply to a court of 
competent jurisdiction for the appointment of arbitrator(s) pursuant to Section 682.04, Florida 
Statutes. Discovery shall be conducted according to a discovery schedule agreed upon by the 
parties and in the event no agreement can be reached, in accordance with a schedule set by 
the arbitrator(s). In the event that the arbitrator(s) decline to set a discovery schedule, either 
party may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction to set a discovery schedule. Any dispute 
not subject to binding arbitration pursuant to these rules and regulations and/or agreement(s) 
shall be subject to determination by a court of competent jurisdiction. In the event any monies 
are owed by one party to the other, the party who is owed such sum shall be entitled to bring 
an action at law for the collection of such sum if not paid within 10 days of the demand for 
payment. The District contemplates making application to the Public Service Commission 
(“PSC”) to come within its jurisdiction, and to be regulated by PSC. In the event the District 
requests and PSC agrees to assume jurisdiction over the District and make the District subject 
to its regulatory authority, this paragraph regarding arbitration is modified to provide that any 
dispute that was originally subject to binding arbitration shall still be subject to binding 
arbitration under this provision in the event PSC, for any reason, declines to accept jurisdiction 
over such dispute. 

 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 5.0 

Deleted: – 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 6.0 

Deleted:  ‐

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted:  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ‐

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ¶
¶
7.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION‐Any dispute related to 
the application for Irrigation Service, the rules and 
regulations (as amended), and/or Customer 
agreement(s)including but not limited to rates for ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

11



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

Venue for any litigation or arbitration arising under these rules and regulations and/or 
agreement(s) shall be St. Lucie County, Florida. 

 
In any litigation or arbitration proceeding the losing party shall reimburse the prevailing 
party’s reasonable legal fees and cost through all arbitration, trial, and bankruptcy 
proceedings at the trial and appellate levels. 

9.0 LIMITATION OF USE  
Irrigation water service purchased from the District shall be used by the Customer only for 
the purposes specified in the application for irrigation water service and the Customer shall 
not sell or otherwise dispose of such irrigation water service supplied by the District. Irrigation 
water service furnished to the Customer shall be rendered directly to the Customer through 
District's individual meter and may not be re‐metered by the Customer for the purpose of 
selling or otherwise disposing of irrigation water service to lessees, tenants, or others and, 
under no circumstances, shall the Customer or Customer's agent or any other individual, 
association or corporation install meters for the purpose of so re‐metering said irrigation 
water service. In no case shall a Customer, except with the written consent of the District, 
extend his lines across a street, alley, lane, court, property lines, avenue, or other way, in 
order to furnish irrigation water service for adjacent property through one meter, even though 
such adjacent property may be owned by him. In case of such unauthorized extension, re‐
metering, sale or disposition of service, Customer's irrigation water service is subject to 
discontinuance until such unauthorized extension, re‐metering, sale or disposition is 
discontinued and full payment is made of bills for irrigation water service, calculated on 
proper classification and rate schedules and reimbursement in full made to the District for all 
extra expenses incurred for clerical work, testing, and inspections. 
The irrigation water is not suitable for domestic uses. Restricted uses include but are not 
limited to the following: 

 
DO NOT drink 
DO NOT have hose connections on the irrigation system 
DO NOT fill swimming pools, hot tubs, wading pools, etc. 
DO NOT use for recreational activities such as squirt guns, water slides, etc. 

 
10.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE 

 The District will, subject to force majeure, at all times use reasonable diligence to provide 
continuous irrigation water service, and provided it has used reasonable diligence, shall not 
be liable to the Customer for failure or interruption of continuous irrigation water service. The 
District shall not be liable for any act or omission caused directly or indirectly by strikes, labor 
troubles, accidents, litigation's, breakdowns, shutdowns for emergency repairs, or 
adjustments, acts of sabotage, enemies of the Unites States, Wars, United States, State, 
Municipal or other governmental interference, acts of God or other causes beyond its control. 

11.0 TYPE AND MAINTENANCE  
The Customer's pipes, apparatus and equipment shall  be selected, installed, used and 
maintained by Customer, at its expense, in accordance with the standard practice, 
conforming with the Rules and Regulations of the District, and in full compliance with all 
Laws and Governmental Regulations applicable to same. The District shall not be 
responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Customer's pipes and facilities. All 
Customer pipes, apparatus and equipment shall be installed an designed in accordance with 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Right:  0.15", Space After:
 12 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 0.89 li

Deleted: ¶
¶
¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ‐ 

Deleted: Company…istrict shall be used by the 
Customer only for the purposes specified in the 
application for irrigation water service and the 
Customer shall not sell or otherwise dispose of such 
irrigation water service supplied by the ...

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...
Deleted: 9.0 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted ...
Deleted:  ‐

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company…istrict will, subject to force ...
Deleted: ¶

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted:  …shall  be selected, installed, used and ...
Deleted: Company…istrict, and in full compliance ...

12



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

the “Irrigation System Design and Construction Standards”, latest edition, The Customer 
expressly agrees not to utilize any appliance or device which is not properly constructed, 
controlled and protected, or which may adversely affect the irrigation water service; and the 
District reserves the right to discontinue or withhold irrigation water service to such apparatus 
or device. 

12.0 CHANGE  OF  CUSTOMER'S  INSTALLATION 
No      changes      or      increases   in Customer's installation, which will materially affect 
the proper operation of the pipes, mains, or stations of the District shall be made without 
written consent of the District. The Customer will be liable for any change resulting from a 
violation of this rule. 

13.0 INSPECTION OF CUSTOMER'S INSTALLATION 
All Customer's irrigation water service installations or changes shall be inspected, at 
Customer’s expense. Please reference the Tradition/ Southern Grove Community 
Development District Required Construction Inspections Form for a list of all the required 
inspection and license requirements for the parties responsible for performing the 
construction activities. There will be a final inspection upon completion by competent 
authority to ensure that Customer's piping, equipment, and devices have been installed in 
accordance with accepted standard practice and such local governmental or other rules as 
may be in effect. Where municipal or other governmental inspection is required by local rules 
or ordinances, the District cannot render irrigation water service until such inspection has 
been made and a formal notice of approval from the inspecting authority has been received 
by the District. The District reserves the right to inspect the Customer's installation prior to 
rendering irrigation water service and from time to time thereafter, but assumes no 
responsibility whatsoever for any portion thereof. 

14.0 PROTECTION OF DISTRICT'S PROPERTY 
The Customer shall  exercise  reasonable  diligence to protect the District's property on the 
Customer's premises, and shall knowingly permit no one but the District's agents, or persons 
authorized by law, to have access to the District's pipes and apparatus. In the event of any 
loss, or damage to property of the District caused by or arising out of the carelessness, 
neglect or misuse by the Customer, the cost of making good such loss or repairing such 
damage shall be paid by the Customer. The District may fine the Customer for unauthorized 
use or tampering of District’s property. 

15.0 ACCESS TO PREMISES 
The duly authorized agents of the District shall have access at all reasonable hours to the 
premises of the Customer for the purpose of its installing, maintaining and inspecting or 
removing the District's property, reading meters and other purposes incident to performance 
under or termination of the District's agreement with the Customer and in such performance 
shall not be liable for trespass. 

16.0 RIGHT OF WAY OR EASEMENTS 
The Customer shall grant or cause to be granted to the District and without cost to the District 
all rights, easements, permits, and privileges which are necessary for the rendering of irrigation 
water service. 

 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶
11.0      

Deleted:     …OF     …CUSTOMER'S     
 INSTALLATION      - ...
Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company…istrict shall be made without 
written consent of the Company ...

Deleted: ¶
12.0 

Deleted:  - 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: , 

Deleted: t

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company…istrict cannot render irrigation 
water service until such inspection has been made 
and a formal notice of approval from the inspecting 
authority has been received by the 
Company…istrict. The Company ...
Deleted: ¶
13.0 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted:  - 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company…istrict's property on the 
Customer's premises, and shall knowingly permit no 
one but the Company…istrict's agents, or persons 
authorized by law, to have access to the 
Company…istrict's pipes and apparatus. In the 
event of any loss, or damage to property of the 
Company…istrict caused by or arising out of the 
carelessness, neglect or misuse by the Customer, ...
Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted:  - 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company…istrict shall have access at all ...
Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Deleted: 15.0

Deleted:  ‐ 

Deleted: ¶ ...
Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

13



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

17.0 BILLING PERIODS 
A statement of account (“Billing Statement”) for irrigation water service will be rendered to 
the address provided on the Application for Irrigation Service via U.S. Mail prior to the tenth 
(10th) day of the month (“Statement Date”) for the prior month’s service. Payment shall be 
due within twenty (20) days of the Statement Date (“Due Date”).The Billing Statement shall 
include the current and previous month meter readings, date meter was read, and the year 
to date usage. Meter readings will be taken on or between the 1st and 5th of each month. 
Non‐receipt of Billing Statement by Customer shall not release or diminish obligation of 
Customer with respect to payment thereof. 

18.0 DELINQUENT BILLS 
Billing Statements not paid by the Due Date shall be considered delinquent. All past due 
balances shall be subject to a late charge of five percent (5%)on the balance due from and 
after the Due Date, not to exceed $250 per month (“Late Charge”); which is due upon receipt 
to avoid interruption of service. Balances beyond thirty (30) days past due shall be subject 
to an interest charge of eighteen percent (18%) per annum (“Finance Charge”). Irrigation 
water service may be discontinued if payment of all sums owed including Late Charges and 
Finance Charges is not received within ten (10) days of written demand for payment. Service 
will be resumed only upon payment of all outstanding sums owed. A reconnection charge of 
$65.00 shall be due for reconnection when performed during regular working hours. After 
regular working hours, the reconnection charge will be $85.00. There shall be no liability of 
any kind against the District for enforcing its rights and remedies (including disconnecting 
service) for failure of the Customer to pay the Billing Statement as required. In the event 
services is disconnected due to Customer breach, the Customer shall remain liable for 
minimum Guaranteed Revenue charges. 
No partial payment of any Billing Statement will be accepted by the District as payment in 
full and will be considered delinquent until such time as full payment is received, except by 
agreement with District. 

19.0 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY 
19.1 FOR INDIVIDUAL COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS  

When change of occupancy takes place on any premises supplied by the District with 
irrigation water service, WRITTEN NOTICE thereof shall be given at the office of the 
District not less than three (3) days prior to the date of the change by the outgoing 
Customer, who will be held responsible for all irrigation water service used on such 
premises until such written notice is so received and the District has had reasonable 
time to discontinue irrigation water service. However, if such written notice has not 
been received, the application of a succeeding occupant for irrigation water service 
will automatically terminate the prior account. Customer's deposit may be transferred 
from one service location to another, if both locations are supplied by the District. 
Consumer's deposit may NOT be transferred from one name to another. 

19.2 FOR HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION/MASTER COMMERCIAL ASSOCIATION 
The respective Association shall be responsible for all irrigation charges as set forth 
in Appendix A “Schedule of Irrigation Rates, Fees, and Charges” for individual 
parcels/units and common areas regardless of occupancy. 

 

Deleted: 16.0  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Heading 1, Left, Indent: Left:  0", Hanging: 
0.5", Right:  0", Line spacing:  single, Outline numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.15" + Indent at:  0.4"

Deleted:  – 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted:  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Cambria Math

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ¶
17.0 

Deleted:  ‐ 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶
¶

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, All caps

Formatted: Heading 2, Left, Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:
 0.5", Right:  0", Space Before:  6 pt, Line spacing: 
single, Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style:
1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.65" + Indent at:  0.9", Tab stops: Not at  0.9"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, All caps

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, All caps

Formatted: No underline, All caps

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, No underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

14



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

20.0 UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS  
Connections to the District's irrigation water system for any purpose whatsoever are to be 
made only by employees of the District, or by license contractors given that the work is in 
accordance with District approved plans. Tie-in or coring connections must be observed, 
witnessed and inspected by District representatives.  Unauthorized connections render the 
service subject to immediate discontinuance without notice and the person, entity, firm, 
association or corporation responsible for such unauthorized connection shall be liable for 
all applicable irrigation service charges at the current rate. Irrigation water service will not be 
restored until such unauthorized connections have been removed and unless settlement is 
made in full for all irrigation water service charges estimated by the District to have been 
used by reason of such unauthorized connection. 

21.0 METERS  
All irrigation water meters shall be furnished at the Customer’s expense and shall be 
accessible and subject to its control. The meter will become the property of the District upon 
acceptance of the installation. The Customer shall provide meter space to the District at a 
suitable and readily accessible location and when the District considers it advisable, within 
the premises to be served, adequate and proper space for the installation of meters, 
telemetry systems, and other similar devices. All meter installations are subject to a fee that 
is determined by the size of the meter. Please see Section 38 for meter installation fees.  

22.0 ALL WATER THROUGH METER  
That portion of the Customer's installation for irrigation water service shall be so arranged 
that all irrigation water service shall pass through the meter. No temporary pipes, nipples or 
spaces are permitted and under no circumstances are connections allowed which may 
permit irrigation water to by‐pass the meter or metering equipment. All irrigation water 
passing through the meter shall be paid for by the Customer at the appropriate rate 
established in the rate schedule. The Customer is responsible for all leaks within the 
Customer’s system. The District, at its discretion, may offer a payment plan for Customer 
payment due to leaks. However, the volume of water lost due to leaks will be counted against 
the monthly and annual allocation of irrigation water. 

23.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS 
When a Customer has been overcharged or undercharged as a   result of incorrect application 
of the rate schedule, incorrect reading of the meter, incorrect connection of the meter, or other 
similar reasons, the amount shall be credited or billed to the Customer as the case may be, 
subject to any written settlement between the parties. To the extent such overcharge or 
undercharge are not contested within one year of billing such overcharge or undercharge shall 
be deemed accepted and waived. 

24.0 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT‐ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT 
Before rendering service, the District requires an applicant for service to satisfactorily 
establish credit, but such establishment of credit shall not relieve the Customer from 
complying with the District's rules for prompt payment. Credit will be deemed so established 
if: 

a. The Customer furnishes a satisfactory guarantor to secure payment of bills for the 
service requested. The Customer pays a cash deposit. 

b. The Customer furnishes an irrevocable letter of credit from a bank or a surety bond. 

Deleted: ¶
¶
CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY –¶ ...

Formatted ...
Deleted:   

Deleted:  

Deleted: ‐

Formatted ...
Deleted:  

Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

Deleted:    

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: n of such unauthorized connection. ¶

Deleted: 20.0 

Formatted ...
Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: ’s

Deleted: , shall remain the property of the ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: The Customer is responsible for all costs ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Moved (insertion) [2]

Deleted: ¶ ...

15



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

 

c. The amount of initial deposit shall be equivalent to the two months billing based on 
the average allocation. 

The District may require, upon reasonable written notice of not less than 30 days, such request 
or notice being separate and apart from any bill for service, a new deposit, where previously 
waived or returned, utilized or an additional deposit, in order to secure payment of current 
bills; provided, however, that the total amount of the required deposit shall not exceed an 
amount equal to the average actual charge for irrigation water service for two monthly billing 
periods for the 12 ‐month period immediately prior to the date of the notice. In the event the 
Customer has had service less than 12 months, then the utility shall base its new or additional 
deposit upon the average actual monthly billing available. 

25.0 REFUND OF DEPOSIT 
 (Reserved). 

26.0 REQUEST FOR METER TEST BY CUSTOMER 
Should any Customer request in writing a bench test of his irrigation water meter, the 
District may require a deposit to defray cost of testing; such deposit not to exceed the 
following schedule of fees: 

TESTING FEE 
Meter Size Fee 

Under 2 inch $75.00 
2 inch and over Actual Cost 

 
If the meter is found to register in excess of the accuracy limits prescribed herein, the deposit 
will be refunded; but if below such accuracy limit, the deposit will be retained by the District 
as a service charge for conducting the test. 

 
27.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER ERROR 

Billing Statements shall be adjusted for meter error based on meter tests made by the 
District. The accuracy of registration of the meter and its performance in service shall be 
determined by the Average Meter Error. 

28.0 FAST METERS  
Whenever a meter tested is found to register in excess of the tolerance provided in the Meter 
Accuracy Requirements provision herein, the District shall refund to the Customer the 
amount billed in error for one half the period since the last test, said one half period not to 
exceed six (6) months except that if it can be shown that the error was due to some cause, 
the date of which can be fixed. The overcharge shall be computed back to but not beyond 
such date. The refund shall not include any part of any minimum charge. 

29.0 METER ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS  
All meters used for measuring quantity of irrigation water delivered to a Customer shall be 
in good mechanical condition and shall be adequate in size and design for the type of service 
which they measure. Before being installed for the use of any Customer every irrigation 
water meter, whether new, repaired or removed from service for any cause, shall be adjusted 
to register within the accuracy limits set forth in the following table: 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶ ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Moved up [2]: The Customer pays a cash deposit.¶

Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted: ‐

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: 25.0

Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted Table ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: METER SIZE FEE¶ ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

Deleted: 26.0 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted:  – 

Formatted ...
Deleted:  …djusted ...
Deleted:  

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted ...
Deleted:  …he ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted ...

16



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

ACCURACY LIMITS IN PERCENT 
Meter Type Max. Rate Interm. Rate Min. Rate New / 

Repaired 
Displacement 98.5-101.5 98.5-101.5 95-101.5 90-101.5 

Current 97-102 97-103 95-102 90-102 
 

30.0 QUALITY OF WATER  
The District does not in any way represent that the quality of the irrigation water meets state 
drinking water standards or is suitable for use as construction water. THE IRRIGATION 
WATER IS TO BE USED FOR LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION PURPOSES ONLY. All lines 
must be underground, and no hose bibs will be allowed on the Customer's irrigation system. 
The Customer is responsible for designing his irrigation system to take into account the 
quality of the water. This would include possible strainers on the irrigation heads to account 
for sand, grit, silt particles, and biological matter, which may be in the irrigation delivery 
system from time to time. The District is not responsible for discoloration, spotting or rusting 
of Customer's property. The Customer should design and install his/her irrigation system to 
avoid spray onto homes, driveways, walks, automobiles, or other property. THE DISTRICT 
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO UTILIZE TREATED WASTEWATER EFFLUENT 
(RECLAIMED WATER) AS A SOURCE OF IRRIGATION WATER. 

31.0 MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES AND REIMBURSEMENTS.  
A schedule of charges for services is listed in Appendix A and shall be subject to adjustment 
by the District from time to time: 

32.0 WATERING RESTRICTIONS  
The District has established a level of service for  the  irrigation system to ensure that the 
consumptive needs of turf grass and landscape plants are met. This established level of 
service is based on the irrigation needs of plants and watering restrictions periodically 
imposed by the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD). All Customers are 
expected to comply with the watering restrictions established by the District and SFWMD. 
Failure to comply with the restrictions may subject the Customer to discontinuance of 
irrigation water service. The District will give a written or electronic notice of any reductions 
in allocation to the Customer necessitated by a reduction mandated by SFWMD within forty‐
eight (48) hours of such notice by SFWMD. Upon the effective date of the restriction as 
provided in the notice, each Customer shall receive its fair share of irrigation water, which 
fair share shall in no event be less than its pro rata share of any reduced allocation (in other 
words, any reduction shall be allocated by the District proportionately on the percentage 
allocation among all Customers under normal operating conditions), subject to the provisions 
of any applicable legal requirements. The Customer is permitted to request a variance on 
allowable water usage. Variances and waivers from the requirements of the Tradition CDD 
No. 1 Policies and Procedures Manual may be granted by the Board subject to the provisions 
and limitations contained in Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28-104, 
Variance or Waiver, of the Uniform Rules or Procedure. Copies of Section 120.542 and 
Chapter 28-104 are available from the District Manager. 

 

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space Before: 
6 pt

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Centered, Space After:  0 pt

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered, Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Centered, Space After:  0 pt

Deleted: ¶ ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: 29.0 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: ‐ 

Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: COMPANY

Formatted ...
Deleted: as follows

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶ ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: – 

Deleted: Company

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted: Company

Deleted:  …nd  …FWMD.   ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

17



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

33.0 GENERAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM OPERATING PARAMETERS  
The District’s irrigation water system utilizes water drawn from the storm water retention lakes 
within the Tradition project. It is the intention of the District to receive treated waste water 
effluent (Reclaim Water) from the City of Port St. Lucie to supplement the irrigation water 
supply. The District has an easement to utilize the storm water retention lakes in such manner, 
and as such Customers are prohibited from withdrawing water from the storm water retention 
lakes within the Tradition Project unless agreed to in writing by the District. 
The distribution system is pressurized at the District’s irrigation water supply plant to 80 
pounds per square inch (psi). The minimum pressure in the District’s distribution system at 
the point of connection is 50 psi. The Customer’s distribution system shall be designed to 
meet the maximum demand for any given irrigation period within the Customer’s property at 
a minimum pressure of 50 psi unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the District. The 
pressures in the distribution system will fluctuate at higher and lower pressures from those 
stated above as systems turn‐on and shut‐ off, designers shall appropriately account for these 
conditions in the design of the Customer’s distribution systems. 
The District is permitted for consumptive use of water through the South Florida Water 
Management District, which regulates the amount of water that can be used for irrigation 
purposes. The amount of supplemental irrigation water allocated varies by month depending 
on the expected rainfall for a given month. The supplemental allocation varies from 0.76‐
inches in January to 4.58‐ inches in May. 

A table of projected water use by month is provided in the District’s “Irrigation System Design 
and Construction Standards”, latest edition. For all irrigation service areas, the District’s 
irrigation system is designed to supply on average 0.68 inches per week (gross) during a 3‐
day per week, 12‐ hour per day irrigation period for any Customer. 
Each Customer will be provided with an allocation of irrigation water during times assigned by 
the District. Such allocation and irrigation times shall be identified by the District in writing on 
the approved Application for Irrigation Service. The irrigation within each development must 
be controlled by time clocks at individual homes or in larger blocks. It is the responsibility of 
the Customer to design its internal irrigation distribution system to operate within the 
parameters of the irrigation distribution system of the District as described above. Assistance 
in determining the best application time will be provided by the Irrigation District staff. 
The irrigation system will operate 24‐hours per day to allow for maintenance of irrigation 
systems as required during the day, but all irrigation shall be performed at night. If any 
irrigation system needs to be operated outside of the assigned times for maintenance or grow‐
in of new landscape material, the user shall notify the District. Variances and waivers from the 
requirements of the Tradition CDD No. 1 Policies and Procedures Manual may be granted by 
the Board subject to the provisions and limitations contained in Section 120.542, Florida 
Statutes, and Chapter 28-104, Variance or Waiver, of the Uniform Rules or Procedure. Copies 
of Section 120.542 and Chapter 28-104 are available from the District Manager. 
Each Customer shall be provided irrigation on a set time and flow basis to facilitate spreading 
the flow to the greatest extent possible. Each Customer will be provided water based on 
number of living units, amount of irrigated area, common areas, and other factors deemed 
pertinent. Typical criteria are show in Table 2. 
At the District’s option, a central radio based control system opens a supply valve at each 
individual development for a predetermined period of time. Each development will also be  
allocated a definite amount of water for each application period. When the predetermined time 
of flow is met the water service will close. It is imperative that individual subdivision irrigation 

Deleted: 32.0 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: – 

Deleted: Company…istrict’s irrigation water system ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: Company…istrict’s irrigation water supply ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...

Deleted: Company

Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company…istrict’s “Irrigation System ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company…istrict. Such allocation and ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Deleted:  

Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: ¶

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: Company

18



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

designers and operators design each irrigation system correctly and amount of water used for 
each unit is correct to ensure each unit receives the proper amount of supplemental irrigation. 
Otherwise, all irrigation cycles may not receive the proper amount of irrigation water. 

TABLE 2:TRADITION IRRIGATION SERVICE SIZING 
Service Size Flow Range (gpm) Irrigated Area (acres) 

From To From To 
2-inch 50 100 0 10 

3-inch 100 250 10 25 

4-inch 250 500 25 50 

6-inch 500 1000 50 100 

8-inch 1000 1800 100 200 

*Based on average residential values 

34.0 IRRIGATION SCHEDULE 
The District has established in the SFWMD permit an irrigation schedule for each Customer 
serviced by the District. The irrigation schedules shall be strictly adhered to. 

34.1 The District will not change, alter or modify the schedule without good cause, and will 
provide written or electronic notification of such change, alteration or modification at 
least 48 hours before such change alteration or modification shall take place. 
Variances and waivers from the requirements of the Tradition CDD No. 1 Policies and 
Procedures Manual may be granted by the Board subject to the provisions and 
limitations contained in Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28-104, 
Variance or Waiver, of the Uniform Rules or Procedure. Copies of Section 120.542 
and Chapter 28-104 are available from the District Manager 

34.2 The Customer shall not change, alter or modify the schedule without approval of the 
District; provided, however, the Customer shall have the right, without the approval of 
the District, to change, alter or modify the schedule as needed to its portion of the 
irrigation system in a manner to sufficiently serve its landscaping if such actions are in 
accordance with the irrigation schedule established in the South Florida Water 
Management permit, the Customer’s Application and Irrigation Service Agreement, 
and any other agreements that may have been entered into between the District and 
the Customer. 

35.0 RATE SCHEDULE ADJUSTMENTS  
Rates shall be determined based on an independent rate study performed by a qualified and 
reputable utility rate, financial and management firm. Rates may be increased no more than 
once per calendar year, based upon the ”Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers 
(CPI‐U): U.S. City Average, by expenditure category and commodity  and service group” for 
the “Water and sewer and trash collection services” expenditure category as published for 

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶ ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ‐

Formatted ...

Deleted:  

Deleted: IRRIGATION 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted Table ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted Table ...
Deleted: ¶ ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: ¶ ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Deleted: –

Formatted ...
Deleted:  

Formatted ...

19



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

the month of October of each year. The District will provide written or electronic notice of 
rate schedule adjustments no later than October 31, and any increase shall not take effect 
until on or after January 1 of the following year. 

36.0  SYSTEM CAPACITY CHARGE  
Capacity charges are suspended until such a time as additional capacity related capital 
investment is required for the System in excess of the historical fees collected. 

37.0 RESERVATION OF CAPACITY 
Upon execution of an application and/or  agreement  for service by the District and the 
Customer, payment of all costs, charges, and fees by the Customer required by the District 
and execution of the application and/or agreement(s), the District will reserve Irrigation Water 
Capacity, as set forth in the application and/or agreement(s). The District is not obligated to 
provide excess irrigation water to the Customer above that necessary to meet the demand 
for irrigated acreage physically connected to the system. The District may allocate irrigation 
water capacity reserved for the Customer to other developers or Customers if the District (i) 
has funds available to replace the facilities utilized by other such Customers; (ii) the District 
has preliminary approval by governmental agencies for the replacement facilities; and (iii) 
the anticipated completion date for the new/replacement facilities is adequate to meet the 
demand of existing Customers in accordance with the plan of development delivered to the 
District. If the District allocates reserved capacity to other developers, the District will notify 
the Customer that has reserved capacity that the Customers has 30 days to file an objection 
with the District, which must include notice that the Customer will need the reserved capacity 
with the indicated period. 

38.0 GUARANTEED REVENUES‐  
Customers that have reserved capacity and have not physically connected and are not 
actively irrigating the irrigated acreage shall pay a Guaranteed Revenue to the District. The 
Guaranteed Revenue shall be paid monthly based on the unit price per irrigated acre set 
forth in Appendix A. 

39.0 WATER CONSERVATION POLICY 
It is the policy of the Tradition Community Development District No. 1, to conserve our water 
resources, not only in the drier months, but also throughout the year. Even though the water 
being delivered to the Customer is not of potable quality, it is important that all Customers 
do their part in protecting the water resources in this area. The restrictive covenants prohibit 
individual private wells within the development; therefore, all irrigation water users must 
cooperate in conserving water for current and future users of the Community. 
In implementing its water conservation program, the Tradition Community Development 
District No. 1 has adopted the following as part of its water conservation policy: 

39.1 The Customer should make sure landscape is not being over watered. Over 
watering is not good for water conservation or for the lawn and shrubs. The 
South Florida Water Management District publication, "Water Use 
Restrictions –Phase 1" provides guidelines for watering and has been 
adopted a part of this policy. 

 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: ¶
35.0  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted:  ‐

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: T

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: he Company requires that all Customers 
pay a pro rata share of the cost for the Company’s 
water treatment facilities, as a system capacity 
charge, regardless of whether the facilities have 
been constructed or will be constructed in the future. 
The system¶
¶
capacity charges are calculated based on the 
Customer’s estimated demand for irrigation water 
and total cost of the Company’s water treatment and 
distribution system (Facilities) required to service the 
planned service area. The system capacity charge ...

Deleted: ¶ ...
Deleted: ‐ 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted:  

Deleted:  

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Deleted: Company

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

20



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

39.2 The Customer is encouraged but not required to utilize an adequate supply 
of mulch in its planting beds which helps retain moisture. 

39.3 Natural vegetation should be used in the landscape plan wherever possible. 
Native plants require less water. Natural areas which have been preserved 
should not be irrigated. 

39.4 The Customer is encouraged to utilize xeriscape landscape practices. 
Xeriscape is an excellent way to have a beautiful landscape that saves 
between 30% and 80% of the water used to irrigate a traditional landscape. 

Water shortage generally occurs in South Florida during the spring months, when the 
evapo‐ transporation is high and rainfall is low. Water shortage can also occur, however, 
throughout an entire year, particularly if summer rains are below normal. The Tradition 
Community Development District No. 1 and the Customers are required to comply with 
any water restriction requirements imposed by South Florida Water Management District 
and local government. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5", Space
Before:  6 pt, Line spacing:  single, Outline numbered +
Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.65" + Indent at:  0.9"

21



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

SCHEDULE OF RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Formatted: Centered, Right:  0.15", Space Before:  6 pt,
After:  12 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Bold

22



Deleted: Irrigation …ommunity Development Company ...

Deleted: April …eptember 1,,…2021 ...

TRADITION CDD NO. 1: TIER 1 USERS IRRIGATION RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 
Monthly Volume and Excess Usage Charge 
 Excess Level 1 

$2.18 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
09/30/2020) 

$2.21 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
10/01/2020) 

Excess Level 2 
$3.27 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

09/30/2020) 
$3.31 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

10/01/2020) 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Account Setup Charge $20.00 

Account Transfer Charge $20.00 

Initial Connection Fee 

 Controller (Piccolo) $2,000 

 Valve/Meter 
  1.5 inch $750 
  2 inch  $750 
  3 inch  $1100 
  4 inch  $1750 
  6 inch  $3200 
  8 inch  $4500 

Rules and Regulation Violation Charge  $50.00 per occurrence 

Damage to CDD Facilities Caused by Customer  Actual Cost of Repair 

Late Fee Charge    5.0% of balance due, not to exceed $250/month 

Finance Charge   18.0% per annum on balance more than 30 days past due 

Plan Review / Inspection Fee  $2500 
Includes first inspection.  Re-inspections billed at hourly service call rate. 

Meter Test Fee   Under 2-inch  $75.00 
   2-inch and above Actual Cost of Test 

Returned Check Fee (not sufficient funds)  $25.00 

Reconnection Charge 
(normal business hours)   $85.00 
(outside of normal hours)  $125.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Transfer of Service Charge   $30.00 

Service Call Charge (1) 
(normal business hours)   $125.00/hr 
(outside of normal hours)  $150.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Terms of Payment:  Bills are due and payable when rendered and become delinquent if not paid 
within 20 days.  After a minimum of 10 days written notice, service may be discontinued. 

(1) Charged only if Service Problem is NOT the fault of CDD. 

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

23



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

TRADITION CDD NO. 1: TIER 2 AND 3 USERS IRRIGATION RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 
Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per Irrigated Acre 

Tier 2 Customers $90.63 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $46.75 / month 

Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per ERU (single family) 
Tier 2 Customers $10.41 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $  5.37 / month 

Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per0.4  ERU (multi- family) 
Tier 2 Customers $  4.16 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $  2.15 / month 

Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per0.1 ERU (apartment) 
Tier 2 Customers $  1.04 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $  0.54 / month 

(2) Monthly Base Charge will be invoiced regardless of volume of water used. 

 

Monthly Volume and Excess Usage Charge (Tier 2 and Tier 3 Customers) 
 Excess Level 1 

$2.18 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
09/30/2020) 

$2.21 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
10/01/2020) 

Excess Level 2 
$3.27 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

09/30/2020) 
$3.31 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

10/01/2020) 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Account Setup Charge  $20.00 

Account Transfer Charge $20.00 

Initial Connection Fee 

 Controller (Piccolo) $2,000 

 Valve/Meter 
  1.5 inch $750 
  2 inch  $750 
  3 inch  $1100 
  4 inch  $1750 
  6 inch  $3200 
  8 inch  $4500 

Rules and Regulation Violation Charge          $50.00 per occurrence 

Damage to CDD Facilities Caused by Customer   Actual Cost of Repair 

Late Fee Charge    5.0% of balance due, not to exceed $250/month 

Finance Charge   18.0% per annum on balance more than 30 days past due 

Plan Review / Inspection Fee  $2500 
Includes first inspection.  Re-inspections billed at hourly service call rate. 

 

Formatted: All caps

Formatted: Space Before:  6 pt

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: No underline

24



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

TRADITION CDD NO. 1: TIER 2 AND 3 USERS IRRIGATION RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 
(Continued) 

 

Meter Test Fee   Under 2-inch  $75.00 
   2-inch and above Actual Cost of Test 

Returned Check Fee (not sufficient funds)   $25.00 

Reconnection Charge 
(normal business hours)  $85.00 
(outside of normal hours) $125.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Transfer of Service Charge    $30.00 

Service Call Charge (1) 
(normal business hours)  $125.00 
(outside of normal hours) $150.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Terms of Payment:  Bills are due and payable when rendered and become delinquent if not paid 
within 20 days.  After a minimum of 10 days written notice, service may be discontinued. 

(1) Charged only if Service Problem is NOT the fault of CDD. 

 

Formatted: Font: Bold, No underline

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0",
Right:  0.06"

Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Right:  0.15", Space Before:  6 pt, After:  12
pt, Line spacing:  single

Deleted: <#>¶
<#>37.0 GUARANTEED REVENUES ‐ Customers 
that have reserved capacity and have not physically 
connected and are not actively irrigating the irrigated 
acreage shall pay a Guaranteed Revenue to the 
CompanyDistrict. The Guaranteed Revenue shall be 
paid monthly based on the unit price per irrigated 
acre set forth in paragraph 38.0 SCHEDULE OF 
IRRIGATION RATES, MICELLANEOUS SERVICE 
CHARGES, AND BILLING INFORMATION.¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Underline

25



Deleted: Irrigation 

Deleted: Company

Deleted: April 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: 1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

STANDARD FORMS 

 

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ¶
SCHEDULE OF IRRIGATION RATES, 
MICELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES, AND BILLING 
INFORMATION (subject to adjustment from time to 
time)¶
¶
System Capacity Charge: $18,818.10 per irrigated 
acre¶
¶
¶
Initial Connection Fee:¶
Controller (Motorola Piccolo) ...

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", Right:  0.15",
Space Before:  6 pt, After:  12 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ¶
<object>Please referenceMonthly Base 
Facility Charge1: $   195. Appendix A for 
additional information on the Tier one, two and 
three Irrigation Fee Schedule. 

Deleted: 75 per month per irrigated acre 
Monthly Usage (Volume) Charge (per 1,000 
gallons): N/A¶
Tier Rate¶
Block 1 $ ¶
Block 2 $ ¶

Column Break
under gallons¶
in excess of gallons¶
¶
Guaranteed Revenues: $ 28.28 per irrigated 
acre Rules and Regulations Violation Charge: 
$50.00 per occurrence¶
Damage to District Facilities caused by 
Customer: Actual cost of repair¶
Late Fee Charge: 5.0% of balance due, not to 
exceed $250.00 per  month, if not paid by Due 
Date¶
Finance Charge: 18.0% per annum on balance 
more than thirty (30) days past due¶
Plan Review & Inspection Fee: $2,500.00 
including first inspection; additional inspections 
are billed at hourly service charge.¶
Meter Test Fee/Deposit: Under 2” $75.00¶ ...
Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)
¶
¶
¶ ...

26



Deleted: Irrigation CompanyDistrict

Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Deleted: IRRIGATION COMPANYDISTRICT, LLCCUSTOMER GUARANTEE DEPOSIT RECEIPT ACCOUNT NO. 
 

I HEREBY REQUEST AND AUTHORIZE THE TRADITION CDD NO. 1 TO SUPPLY IRRIGATION 
SERVICE TO THE BELOW DESCRIBED PROPERTY UNTIL RECEIPT OF FORMAL NOTICE 
FROM ME REQUESTING DISCONTINUANCE OF SUCH IRRIGATION SERVICE. 
 
I AGREE TO PROMPTLY PAY FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE AT THE RATES AND WITHIN THE 
TIME PERIODS DELINEATED IN THE DISTRICT’S RULES AND REGULATIONS. 
 
I HEREBY AGREE TO ABIDE BY THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE TRADITION CDD 
NO. 1. 

 
SIGNATURE:   DATE:     

 
NAME:     

 
SERVICE ADDRESS:      

 
BILLING ADDRESS:      

 
CITY:   STATE:   zip:   

 

DEPOSIT AMOUNT:   □ Check No:   □ Other:      
 

RECEIVED BY:    Date:     
 

TO GUARANTEE THE PAYMENT OF ANY AND ALL INDEBTEDNESS FOR IRRIGATION 
SERVICES WHICH MAY BE OR BECOME DUE TO TRADITION CDD NO. 1, (HEREINAFTER 
CALLED THE CDD) BY SAID CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER AGREES THAT SUCH DEPOSIT OR 
ANY PART THEREOF MAY BE APPLIED BY THE CDD AT ANY TIME IN SATISFACTION OF 
SAID GUARANTEE. THAT AFTER SUCH APPLICATION, THE REMAINDER THEREOF MAY 
BE APPLIED IN DISCHARGE OF ANY INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CUSTOMER TO THE CDD 
WHATSOEVER AND THAT THE CDD MAY USE SAID DEPOSITS AS IF THE CDD WERE THE 
ABSOLUTE OWNER THEREOF. UPON DISCONTINUANCE OF ANY OR ALL SERVICES 
COVERED BY THIS DEPOSIT AND THE PRESENTATION OF THE RECEIPT AND PROPER 
IDENTIFICATION, THE CDD AGREES TO REFUND TO THE CUSTOMER THAT PORTION OF 
THE DEPOSIT APPLYING TO THE SERVICE OR SERVICES DISCONTINUED, LESS ANY 
AMOUNTS THEN DUE THE DISTRICT. THIS DEPOSIT SHAL NOT PRECLUDE THE CDD 
FROM DISCONTINUING FOR NONPAYMENT ANY AND ALL SERVICES COVERED BY THIS 
DEPOSIT REGARDLESS OF THE SUFFICIENCY OF SAID DEPOSIT TO COVER SUCH 
INDEBTEDNESS FOR SUCH SERVICES. 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...
Deleted: R

Formatted ...

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: DEVELOPMENT COMPANYDISTRICT

Formatted ...
Deleted: RERECIEPT

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...
Deleted: IRRIGATION COMPANYDISTRICT

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: IRRIGATION COMPANYDISTRICT

Formatted ...
Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: DISTRICT

Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: ISTRICT

Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: ISTRICT 

Formatted ...
Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: ISTRICT

Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: ISTRICT

Deleted: COMPANY

Deleted: ISTRICT

Deleted: COMPANY…ISTRICT. THIS DEPOSIT ...
Deleted: ISTRICT

27



Deleted: Irrigation CompanyDistrict

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Centered

Deleted: IRRIGATION COMPANYDISTRICT, LLCAPPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE 
 

Type of Service: Residential General 
 

Applicant Information: 
 

Applicant Name:        

Billing Address:                                                                                                                                                                       

City:  State:   Zip Code:                               

Phone Number:   Fax:   

Email:     

Social Security Number/Driver License or Tax Identification Number:   

  

Applicant/Agents Signature:   
Agents Name:    

 
Service Location: 

 

Service Address:        

Subdivision:   Plat Book:  Pages:  

Block Number:  Lot Number:  Unit Number:    

====================================================================================================== 
(To be completed by TIC) 

====================================================================================================== 
Service Information: 
Requested Meter Size: 1” 1‐1/2” 2” 3” 4” 6” 8” Other:       

Service Irrigable Area:  Square Feet  

 Acres Annual Allocation:  M.G.   Avg. 

Monthly Allocation    M.G. 

Max. Month Allocation  M.G.   Estimated Peak Demand:  GPM (during hours of operation) 

General Service Applicants shall submit three (3) sets of construction documents (plans and specifications). 
 
 

Account Number:   Service Start 
Date: 

   

Meter ID No:   Size:    Service End Date:    

System Capacity Charge: $   Fees: $   
 
Total Amount Due: 

Deposit Amount: $  
 

$   

 
Approved By:    Date:    

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Body Text, Centered, Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ===============

Deleted: ===============

Formatted: Font: (Default) Cambria Math

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

28



Deleted: Tradition Irrigation CompanyDistrict¶ ...

 

Note: 
1. Upon signature by the applicant and approval by Tradition Community Development District No. 1  (the 

“CDD”), the applicant shall become a Customer of the CDD and agrees to timely pay for irrigation 
service and abide by the rules and regulations of the CDD as contained in the “Tradition Community 
Development District No. 1  Irrigation Water Rules and Regulations”, latest edition. 

2. Application to Construct in the “Tradition Irrigation System Design and Construction Standards”, 
latest edition must be consistent with this Application for Service. 

 
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 1 

 
By:   
Name:  
Title:   

CUSTOMER: 
 
By:  
Name:   

  
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
) SS: 

COUNTY OF ) 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me, an officer duly authorized in the State aforesaid 
and in the County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, the foregoing instrument was acknowledged 
before me  by  ,   the       of TRADITION   

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1, a community development district created pursuant to 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, freely and voluntarily under authority duly vested in him/her by said corporation 
and that the seal affixed thereto is the true corporate seal of said corporation.  He/she , by means of __ 
physical presence or ___ online notarization and ____ is personally known to me or who has produced_____ 
 as identification. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this  day of 

  , 20 . 
 
 

Notary Public 
 
 

Typed, printed or stamped name of Notary Public 
 

My Commission Expires: 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...
Deleted: Irrigation

Deleted: Company

Deleted: District

Deleted: Company

Deleted: istrict

Deleted: Company

Deleted: istrict

Deleted: Company

Deleted: istrict…as contained in the “Tradition ...
Deleted: Company
Deleted: District
Deleted: Irrigation 
Deleted: Company
Deleted: District 

Deleted: IRRIGATION 

Formatted ...
Deleted: COMPANY

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted:   …e  ...
Deleted: IRRIGATION

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Deleted: COMPANY

Formatted ...
Deleted:  Florida corporation…community ...

Formatted ...
Deleted: is personally known… by means of __ ...

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...

29



Deleted: Tradition Irrigation CompanyDistrict¶
Rules and Regulations 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
) SS: 

COUNTY OF ) 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me, an officer duly authorized in the State 
aforesaid and in the County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, the foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before  me  by  , by means of __ physical presence or ___ online 
notarization,  and who is personally known to me or who has produced 
  __________ as identification. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this  day 
of 

  , 20  . 
 
 

Notary Public 
 
 

Typed, printed or stamped name of Notary Public 
 

My Commission Expires: 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Expanded by /
Condensed by 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

30



 
 
 

IRRIGATION WATER RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
 

TRADITION COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 

10489 SW MEETING STREET 
PORT ST. LUCIE, FLORIDA 

34982 (772) 340‐3500 
(772) 340‐1079 FAX 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective Date:  September 1, 2020 
 
 
 

31



 

Table of Contents 
1.0 TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS .................................................................................. 4 

2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................................. 5 

3.0 APPLICATION TYPE ............................................................................................................................. 5 

4.0 APPLICATION SIGNATURE ................................................................................................................ 5 

5.0 APPLICATION BY AGENTS ................................................................................................................ 5 

6.0 APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE ................................................ 6 

7.0 WITHHOLDING SERVICE.................................................................................................................... 6 

8.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION ...................................................................................................................... 6 

9.0 LIMITATION OF USE ............................................................................................................................ 7 

10.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE ................................................................................................................. 7 

11.0 TYPE AND MAINTENANCE ................................................................................................................ 7 

12.0 CHANGE  OF  CUSTOMER'S  INSTALLATION ............................................................................... 8 

13.0 INSPECTION OF CUSTOMER'S INSTALLATION ........................................................................... 8 

14.0 PROTECTION OF DISTRICT'S PROPERTY .................................................................................... 8 

15.0 ACCESS TO PREMISES ...................................................................................................................... 8 

16.0 RIGHT OF WAY OR EASEMENTS ................................................................................................... 8 

17.0 BILLING PERIODS ................................................................................................................................ 9 

18.0 DELINQUENT BILLS ............................................................................................................................. 9 

19.0 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY ................................................................................................................ 9 

19.1 FOR INDIVIDUAL COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS ........................................................................ 9 

19.2 FOR HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION/MASTER COMMERCIAL ASSOCIATION ............... 9 

20.0 UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS .................................................................................................. 10 

21.0 METERS ................................................................................................................................................ 10 

22.0 ALL WATER THROUGH METER ...................................................................................................... 10 

23.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS ................................................................................................................... 10 

24.0 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT‐ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT .............................................................. 10 

25.0 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ....................................................................................................................... 11 

26.0 REQUEST FOR METER TEST BY CUSTOMER ........................................................................... 11 

27.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER ERROR ........................................................................... 11 

28.0 FAST METERS ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

29.0 METER ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................... 11 

30.0 QUALITY OF WATER ......................................................................................................................... 12 

31.0 MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES AND REIMBURSEMENTS. ........................................................ 12 

32



32.0 WATERING RESTRICTIONS ............................................................................................................ 12 

33.0 GENERAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM OPERATING PARAMETERS .............................................. 13 

34.0 IRRIGATION SCHEDULE .................................................................................................................. 14 

35.0 RATE SCHEDULE ADJUSTMENTS ................................................................................................ 14 

36.0 SYSTEM CAPACITY CHARGE ......................................................................................................... 15 

37.0 RESERVATION OF CAPACITY ........................................................................................................ 15 

38.0 GUARANTEED REVENUES‐ ............................................................................................................ 15 

39.0 WATER CONSERVATION POLICY ................................................................................................. 15 

 
Appendix A - Rates, Fees, and Charges 
 
Appendix B – Standard Forms

33



1.0 TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS  
“AVERAGE METER ERROR” ‐ The algebraic average of the errors determined for the 
minimum, intermediate, and maximum test flowrates, where the meter error is calculated as 
(Vi‐Va)/Va X 100. Vi is the indicated volume read from the meter register. Va is the actual 
volume of water passed through the meter for a given duration. 

 
“BASE FACILITY CHARGE” – minimum monthly charge for per irrigated acre for providing 
irrigation water service to the Customer. 

 
“District” – Tradition Community Development Disctrict, it’s successor’s or assigns. 

 
“CONSUMER” – Any person, entity, firm, association, corporation, government agency or 
similar organization directly supplied with irrigation water service by the District. 

 
“CUSTOMER” ‐ Means the person, entity, firm, association or corporation who has made 
application for irrigation water service or entered into an agreement to receive irrigation water 
service from the District and who is liable for the payment of that irrigation water service. 

 
“CUSTOMER’S INSTALLATION” – All pipes, shut‐offs, valves, fixtures and appliances or 
apparatus of every kind and nature used in connection with or forming a part of an installation 
for utilizing irrigation water for any purpose ordinarily located on the Customer’s side of the 
“Point of Delivery”, whether such installation is owned by Customer, or used by Consumer 
under lease or otherwise. 

 
“IRRIGATION WATER CAPACITY” – shall be the volume of irrigation water generated from 
the physically constructed water treatment and distribution facilities available for service. 

 
“MAIN” – Shall refer to a pipe, conduit, or other facility installed to convey irrigation water 
services to individual service lines or to other mains to the “Point of Delivery” outside of the 
Customer property unless located within a recorded easement acceptable to the District. 

 
“POINT OF DELIVERY” – The point where the District’s pipes or meters are connected with 
pipes of the Customer. 

 
“RATE SCHEDULE” – Refers to rates or charges for the particular classification of service 
as established by the District from time to time. 

 
“RECLAIM WATER” – Water that is treated wastewater effluent from the City of Port St. 
Lucie’s waste water treatment plants or other water utilized by District to provide irrigation 
water service to the Customer. 

 
“REGULAR WORKING HOURS” – shall be Monday through Friday from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M., except holidays established by the District. 

“USAGE CHARGE” – monthly charge for irrigation water consumption at the current rate per 
1,000 gallons of water consumed. 

34



2.0 GENERAL INFORMATION  
To the extent of inconsistency between the District's Rules and Regulations, with any Statute, 
Law or Ordinance, then such Statute, Law or Ordinance, shall control to the extent of such 
inconsistency. These Rules and Regulations are a part of the rate schedules, applications and 
contracts of the District, and in the absence of specific written agreement to the contrary, they 
apply without modifications or change to each and every Customer to whom the District renders 
irrigation water service. 

In the event that a portion of these Rules and Regulations are declared unconstitutional or 
void for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Rules and Regulations for irrigation water 
service unless such court order or decision shall so direct. 

3.0 APPLICATION TYPE  
Customers for irrigation water service will be separated into three tiers that will be determined 
by the method in which the irrigation water is provided to the project site. 

 
3.1 Tier One – Customer connects to an existing irrigation main owned and maintained 

by the District. The Customer will install a Controller/Piccolo device, an irrigation 
meter, and may be required to provide a telemetry system depending on the meter’s 
proximity from surrounding Irrigation telemetry systems. 

 
3.2 Tier Two – Customer connects to the District’s water supply, including lakes or 

canals, through a remote District owned pump station. The District maintains the 
pump station and Customer would be responsible for the distribution.  

 
3.3 Tier Three – Customer connects to the District’s water supply including lakes, canals  

or from a properly permitted well. Customer owns and maintain the pump station and 
distribution System. If irrigated area determined by the District, in consultation with 
SRWMD to require significant withdrawal from District groundwater sources, the 
customer would be required to install a meter record actual water use. The Customer 
may be required to provide a telemetry system depending on the meter’s proximity 
to surrounding Irrigation telemetry systems. 

 
4.0 APPLICATION SIGNATURE  

Irrigation water service is furnished only upon signed application or agreement accepted by 
the District and the conditions of such application or agreements are binding upon the 
Customer as well as upon the District. A copy of the application for irrigation water service 
is included herein. Payment of all fees will be required with the application. See Section 36 
Schedule of Irrigation Rates. Initiation of service and billing will begin on the date the meter 
is installed. 

5.0 APPLICATION BY AGENTS  
 Applications for irrigation water service requested by persons, firms, entities, partnerships, 
associations, corporations, and others, shall be rendered only by duly authorized parties. 
When irrigation water service is rendered under agreement, or agreements, entered into 
between the District and an agent of the principal, the use of such irrigation water service by 
the principal shall constitute full and complete ratification by the principal of the agreement 

35



or agreements entered into between agent and the District and under which such irrigation 
water service is rendered. 

6.0 APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE  
Upon the Application and Agreement for Irrigation Service being signed by Customer and 
District, the obligations of Customer under such Application shall be binding upon the 
Customer, its successors and assigns. The District shall not be required to enter into an 
Application and Agreement for Irrigation Service prior to the Customer obtaining an 
Environmental Resources Permit from SFWMD for the area to be serviced. 

7.0 WITHHOLDING SERVICE 
The District may withhold or discontinue irrigation water service rendered under application 
made by any member or agent of a household, association, organization or business unless 
all prior indebtedness to the District of such household, association, organization or business 
for irrigation water service has been settled in full. Service may also be discontinued for any 
violation by the Customer of any rule or regulation set forth herein. The District will provide 
a written notice to the Customer of its intent to withhold service ten (10) days prior to the 
date service will be withheld. The notice will state the reason for withholding service, a 
demand for cure, and the date service will be withheld if such cure is not completed by 
Customer. 

8.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
Any dispute related to the application for Irrigation Service, the rules and regulations (as 
amended), and/or Customer agreement(s)including but not limited to rates for supply and 
delivery of irrigation water and related services, irrigation water allocation, irrigation water 
pressure, and irrigation water schedules (except payment of monies owed) that the Customer 
and District cannot resolve amongst themselves shall be submitted to binding arbitration 
through an alternate dispute resolution provider licensed and certified to conduct binding 
arbitration in the State of Florida. Such District shall be selected by mutual agreement by the 
parties. Such arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to and in accordance with the Florida 
Arbitration Act as set forth in Chapter 682, Florida Statutes. If the parties cannot mutually 
agree on the selection of an arbitrator or arbitrators, then either party may apply to a court of 
competent jurisdiction for the appointment of arbitrator(s) pursuant to Section 682.04, Florida 
Statutes. Discovery shall be conducted according to a discovery schedule agreed upon by the 
parties and in the event no agreement can be reached, in accordance with a schedule set by 
the arbitrator(s). In the event that the arbitrator(s) decline to set a discovery schedule, either 
party may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction to set a discovery schedule. Any dispute 
not subject to binding arbitration pursuant to these rules and regulations and/or agreement(s) 
shall be subject to determination by a court of competent jurisdiction. In the event any monies 
are owed by one party to the other, the party who is owed such sum shall be entitled to bring 
an action at law for the collection of such sum if not paid within 10 days of the demand for 
payment. The District contemplates making application to the Public Service Commission 
(“PSC”) to come within its jurisdiction, and to be regulated by PSC. In the event the District 
requests and PSC agrees to assume jurisdiction over the District and make the District subject 
to its regulatory authority, this paragraph regarding arbitration is modified to provide that any 
dispute that was originally subject to binding arbitration shall still be subject to binding 
arbitration under this provision in the event PSC, for any reason, declines to accept jurisdiction 
over such dispute. 

 

36



Venue for any litigation or arbitration arising under these rules and regulations and/or 
agreement(s) shall be St. Lucie County, Florida. 

 
In any litigation or arbitration proceeding the losing party shall reimburse the prevailing 
party’s reasonable legal fees and cost through all arbitration, trial, and bankruptcy 
proceedings at the trial and appellate levels. 

9.0 LIMITATION OF USE  
Irrigation water service purchased from the District shall be used by the Customer only for 
the purposes specified in the application for irrigation water service and the Customer shall 
not sell or otherwise dispose of such irrigation water service supplied by the District. Irrigation 
water service furnished to the Customer shall be rendered directly to the Customer through 
District's individual meter and may not be re‐metered by the Customer for the purpose of 
selling or otherwise disposing of irrigation water service to lessees, tenants, or others and, 
under no circumstances, shall the Customer or Customer's agent or any other individual, 
association or corporation install meters for the purpose of so re‐metering said irrigation 
water service. In no case shall a Customer, except with the written consent of the District, 
extend his lines across a street, alley, lane, court, property lines, avenue, or other way, in 
order to furnish irrigation water service for adjacent property through one meter, even though 
such adjacent property may be owned by him. In case of such unauthorized extension, re‐
metering, sale or disposition of service, Customer's irrigation water service is subject to 
discontinuance until such unauthorized extension, re‐metering, sale or disposition is 
discontinued and full payment is made of bills for irrigation water service, calculated on 
proper classification and rate schedules and reimbursement in full made to the District for all 
extra expenses incurred for clerical work, testing, and inspections. 
The irrigation water is not suitable for domestic uses. Restricted uses include but are not 
limited to the following: 

 
DO NOT drink 
DO NOT have hose connections on the irrigation system 
DO NOT fill swimming pools, hot tubs, wading pools, etc. 
DO NOT use for recreational activities such as squirt guns, water slides, etc. 

 
10.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE 

 The District will, subject to force majeure, at all times use reasonable diligence to provide 
continuous irrigation water service, and provided it has used reasonable diligence, shall not 
be liable to the Customer for failure or interruption of continuous irrigation water service. The 
District shall not be liable for any act or omission caused directly or indirectly by strikes, labor 
troubles, accidents, litigation's, breakdowns, shutdowns for emergency repairs, or 
adjustments, acts of sabotage, enemies of the Unites States, Wars, United States, State, 
Municipal or other governmental interference, acts of God or other causes beyond its control. 

11.0 TYPE AND MAINTENANCE  
The Customer's pipes, apparatus and equipment shall  be selected, installed, used and 
maintained by Customer, at its expense, in accordance with the standard practice, 
conforming with the Rules and Regulations of the District, and in full compliance with all 
Laws and Governmental Regulations applicable to same. The District shall not be 
responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Customer's pipes and facilities. All 
Customer pipes, apparatus and equipment shall be installed an designed in accordance with 

37



the “Irrigation System Design and Construction Standards”, latest edition, The Customer 
expressly agrees not to utilize any appliance or device which is not properly constructed, 
controlled and protected, or which may adversely affect the irrigation water service; and the 
District reserves the right to discontinue or withhold irrigation water service to such apparatus 
or device. 

12.0 CHANGE  OF  CUSTOMER'S  INSTALLATION 
No      changes      or      increases   in Customer's installation, which will materially affect 
the proper operation of the pipes, mains, or stations of the District shall be made without 
written consent of the District. The Customer will be liable for any change resulting from a 
violation of this rule. 

13.0 INSPECTION OF CUSTOMER'S INSTALLATION 
All Customer's irrigation water service installations or changes shall be inspected, at 
Customer’s expense. Please reference the Tradition/ Southern Grove Community 
Development District Required Construction Inspections Form for a list of all the required 
inspection and license requirements for the parties responsible for performing the 
construction activities. There will be a final inspection upon completion by competent 
authority to ensure that Customer's piping, equipment, and devices have been installed in 
accordance with accepted standard practice and such local governmental or other rules as 
may be in effect. Where municipal or other governmental inspection is required by local rules 
or ordinances, the District cannot render irrigation water service until such inspection has 
been made and a formal notice of approval from the inspecting authority has been received 
by the District. The District reserves the right to inspect the Customer's installation prior to 
rendering irrigation water service and from time to time thereafter, but assumes no 
responsibility whatsoever for any portion thereof. 

14.0 PROTECTION OF DISTRICT'S PROPERTY 
The Customer shall  exercise  reasonable  diligence to protect the District's property on the 
Customer's premises, and shall knowingly permit no one but the District's agents, or persons 
authorized by law, to have access to the District's pipes and apparatus. In the event of any 
loss, or damage to property of the District caused by or arising out of the carelessness, 
neglect or misuse by the Customer, the cost of making good such loss or repairing such 
damage shall be paid by the Customer. The District may fine the Customer for unauthorized 
use or tampering of District’s property. 

15.0 ACCESS TO PREMISES 
The duly authorized agents of the District shall have access at all reasonable hours to the 
premises of the Customer for the purpose of its installing, maintaining and inspecting or 
removing the District's property, reading meters and other purposes incident to performance 
under or termination of the District's agreement with the Customer and in such performance 
shall not be liable for trespass. 

16.0 RIGHT OF WAY OR EASEMENTS 
The Customer shall grant or cause to be granted to the District and without cost to the District 
all rights, easements, permits, and privileges which are necessary for the rendering of irrigation 
water service. 

 

38



17.0 BILLING PERIODS 
A statement of account (“Billing Statement”) for irrigation water service will be rendered to 
the address provided on the Application for Irrigation Service via U.S. Mail prior to the tenth 
(10th) day of the month (“Statement Date”) for the prior month’s service. Payment shall be 
due within twenty (20) days of the Statement Date (“Due Date”).The Billing Statement shall 
include the current and previous month meter readings, date meter was read, and the year 
to date usage. Meter readings will be taken on or between the 1st and 5th of each month. 
Non‐receipt of Billing Statement by Customer shall not release or diminish obligation of 
Customer with respect to payment thereof. 

18.0 DELINQUENT BILLS 
Billing Statements not paid by the Due Date shall be considered delinquent. All past due 
balances shall be subject to a late charge of five percent (5%)on the balance due from and 
after the Due Date, not to exceed $250 per month (“Late Charge”); which is due upon receipt 
to avoid interruption of service. Balances beyond thirty (30) days past due shall be subject 
to an interest charge of eighteen percent (18%) per annum (“Finance Charge”). Irrigation 
water service may be discontinued if payment of all sums owed including Late Charges and 
Finance Charges is not received within ten (10) days of written demand for payment. Service 
will be resumed only upon payment of all outstanding sums owed. A reconnection charge of 
$65.00 shall be due for reconnection when performed during regular working hours. After 
regular working hours, the reconnection charge will be $85.00. There shall be no liability of 
any kind against the District for enforcing its rights and remedies (including disconnecting 
service) for failure of the Customer to pay the Billing Statement as required. In the event 
services is disconnected due to Customer breach, the Customer shall remain liable for 
minimum Guaranteed Revenue charges. 
No partial payment of any Billing Statement will be accepted by the District as payment in 
full and will be considered delinquent until such time as full payment is received, except by 
agreement with District. 

19.0 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY 
19.1 FOR INDIVIDUAL COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS  

When change of occupancy takes place on any premises supplied by the District with 
irrigation water service, WRITTEN NOTICE thereof shall be given at the office of the 
District not less than three (3) days prior to the date of the change by the outgoing 
Customer, who will be held responsible for all irrigation water service used on such 
premises until such written notice is so received and the District has had reasonable 
time to discontinue irrigation water service. However, if such written notice has not 
been received, the application of a succeeding occupant for irrigation water service 
will automatically terminate the prior account. Customer's deposit may be transferred 
from one service location to another, if both locations are supplied by the District. 
Consumer's deposit may NOT be transferred from one name to another. 

19.2 FOR HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION/MASTER COMMERCIAL ASSOCIATION 
The respective Association shall be responsible for all irrigation charges as set forth 
in Appendix A “Schedule of Irrigation Rates, Fees, and Charges” for individual 
parcels/units and common areas regardless of occupancy. 

 

39



20.0 UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS  
Connections to the District's irrigation water system for any purpose whatsoever are to be 
made only by employees of the District, or by license contractors given that the work is in 
accordance with District approved plans. Tie-in or coring connections must be observed, 
witnessed and inspected by District representatives.  Unauthorized connections render the 
service subject to immediate discontinuance without notice and the person, entity, firm, 
association or corporation responsible for such unauthorized connection shall be liable for 
all applicable irrigation service charges at the current rate. Irrigation water service will not be 
restored until such unauthorized connections have been removed and unless settlement is 
made in full for all irrigation water service charges estimated by the District to have been 
used by reason of such unauthorized connection. 

21.0 METERS  
All irrigation water meters shall be furnished at the Customer’s expense and shall be 
accessible and subject to its control. The meter will become the property of the District upon 
acceptance of the installation. The Customer shall provide meter space to the District at a 
suitable and readily accessible location and when the District considers it advisable, within 
the premises to be served, adequate and proper space for the installation of meters, 
telemetry systems, and other similar devices. All meter installations are subject to a fee that 
is determined by the size of the meter. Please see Section 38 for meter installation fees.  

22.0 ALL WATER THROUGH METER  
That portion of the Customer's installation for irrigation water service shall be so arranged 
that all irrigation water service shall pass through the meter. No temporary pipes, nipples or 
spaces are permitted and under no circumstances are connections allowed which may 
permit irrigation water to by‐pass the meter or metering equipment. All irrigation water 
passing through the meter shall be paid for by the Customer at the appropriate rate 
established in the rate schedule. The Customer is responsible for all leaks within the 
Customer’s system. The District, at its discretion, may offer a payment plan for Customer 
payment due to leaks. However, the volume of water lost due to leaks will be counted against 
the monthly and annual allocation of irrigation water. 

23.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS 
When a Customer has been overcharged or undercharged as a   result of incorrect application 
of the rate schedule, incorrect reading of the meter, incorrect connection of the meter, or other 
similar reasons, the amount shall be credited or billed to the Customer as the case may be, 
subject to any written settlement between the parties. To the extent such overcharge or 
undercharge are not contested within one year of billing such overcharge or undercharge shall 
be deemed accepted and waived. 

24.0 CUSTOMER DEPOSIT‐ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT 
Before rendering service, the District requires an applicant for service to satisfactorily 
establish credit, but such establishment of credit shall not relieve the Customer from 
complying with the District's rules for prompt payment. Credit will be deemed so established 
if: 

a. The Customer furnishes a satisfactory guarantor to secure payment of bills for the 
service requested. The Customer pays a cash deposit. 

b. The Customer furnishes an irrevocable letter of credit from a bank or a surety bond. 

40



 

c. The amount of initial deposit shall be equivalent to the two months billing based on 
the average allocation. 

The District may require, upon reasonable written notice of not less than 30 days, such request 
or notice being separate and apart from any bill for service, a new deposit, where previously 
waived or returned, utilized or an additional deposit, in order to secure payment of current 
bills; provided, however, that the total amount of the required deposit shall not exceed an 
amount equal to the average actual charge for irrigation water service for two monthly billing 
periods for the 12 ‐month period immediately prior to the date of the notice. In the event the 
Customer has had service less than 12 months, then the utility shall base its new or additional 
deposit upon the average actual monthly billing available. 

25.0 REFUND OF DEPOSIT 
 (Reserved). 

26.0 REQUEST FOR METER TEST BY CUSTOMER 
Should any Customer request in writing a bench test of his irrigation water meter, the 
District may require a deposit to defray cost of testing; such deposit not to exceed the 
following schedule of fees: 

TESTING FEE 
Meter Size Fee 

Under 2 inch $75.00 
2 inch and over Actual Cost 

 
If the meter is found to register in excess of the accuracy limits prescribed herein, the deposit 
will be refunded; but if below such accuracy limit, the deposit will be retained by the District 
as a service charge for conducting the test. 

 
27.0 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER ERROR 

Billing Statements shall be adjusted for meter error based on meter tests made by the 
District. The accuracy of registration of the meter and its performance in service shall be 
determined by the Average Meter Error. 

28.0 FAST METERS  
Whenever a meter tested is found to register in excess of the tolerance provided in the Meter 
Accuracy Requirements provision herein, the District shall refund to the Customer the 
amount billed in error for one half the period since the last test, said one half period not to 
exceed six (6) months except that if it can be shown that the error was due to some cause, 
the date of which can be fixed. The overcharge shall be computed back to but not beyond 
such date. The refund shall not include any part of any minimum charge. 

29.0 METER ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS  
All meters used for measuring quantity of irrigation water delivered to a Customer shall be 
in good mechanical condition and shall be adequate in size and design for the type of service 
which they measure. Before being installed for the use of any Customer every irrigation 
water meter, whether new, repaired or removed from service for any cause, shall be adjusted 
to register within the accuracy limits set forth in the following table: 

41



ACCURACY LIMITS IN PERCENT 
Meter Type Max. Rate Interm. Rate Min. Rate New / 

Repaired 
Displacement 98.5-101.5 98.5-101.5 95-101.5 90-101.5 

Current 97-102 97-103 95-102 90-102 
 

30.0 QUALITY OF WATER  
The District does not in any way represent that the quality of the irrigation water meets state 
drinking water standards or is suitable for use as construction water. THE IRRIGATION 
WATER IS TO BE USED FOR LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION PURPOSES ONLY. All lines 
must be underground, and no hose bibs will be allowed on the Customer's irrigation system. 
The Customer is responsible for designing his irrigation system to take into account the 
quality of the water. This would include possible strainers on the irrigation heads to account 
for sand, grit, silt particles, and biological matter, which may be in the irrigation delivery 
system from time to time. The District is not responsible for discoloration, spotting or rusting 
of Customer's property. The Customer should design and install his/her irrigation system to 
avoid spray onto homes, driveways, walks, automobiles, or other property. THE DISTRICT 
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO UTILIZE TREATED WASTEWATER EFFLUENT 
(RECLAIMED WATER) AS A SOURCE OF IRRIGATION WATER. 

31.0 MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES AND REIMBURSEMENTS.  
A schedule of charges for services is listed in Appendix A and shall be subject to adjustment 
by the District from time to time: 

32.0 WATERING RESTRICTIONS  
The District has established a level of service for  the  irrigation system to ensure that the 
consumptive needs of turf grass and landscape plants are met. This established level of 
service is based on the irrigation needs of plants and watering restrictions periodically 
imposed by the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD). All Customers are 
expected to comply with the watering restrictions established by the District and SFWMD. 
Failure to comply with the restrictions may subject the Customer to discontinuance of 
irrigation water service. The District will give a written or electronic notice of any reductions 
in allocation to the Customer necessitated by a reduction mandated by SFWMD within forty‐
eight (48) hours of such notice by SFWMD. Upon the effective date of the restriction as 
provided in the notice, each Customer shall receive its fair share of irrigation water, which 
fair share shall in no event be less than its pro rata share of any reduced allocation (in other 
words, any reduction shall be allocated by the District proportionately on the percentage 
allocation among all Customers under normal operating conditions), subject to the provisions 
of any applicable legal requirements. The Customer is permitted to request a variance on 
allowable water usage. Variances and waivers from the requirements of the Tradition CDD 
No. 1 Policies and Procedures Manual may be granted by the Board subject to the provisions 
and limitations contained in Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28-104, 
Variance or Waiver, of the Uniform Rules or Procedure. Copies of Section 120.542 and 
Chapter 28-104 are available from the District Manager. 

 

42



33.0 GENERAL IRRIGATION SYSTEM OPERATING PARAMETERS  
The District’s irrigation water system utilizes water drawn from the storm water retention lakes 
within the Tradition project. It is the intention of the District to receive treated waste water 
effluent (Reclaim Water) from the City of Port St. Lucie to supplement the irrigation water 
supply. The District has an easement to utilize the storm water retention lakes in such manner, 
and as such Customers are prohibited from withdrawing water from the storm water retention 
lakes within the Tradition Project unless agreed to in writing by the District. 
The distribution system is pressurized at the District’s irrigation water supply plant to 80 
pounds per square inch (psi). The minimum pressure in the District’s distribution system at 
the point of connection is 50 psi. The Customer’s distribution system shall be designed to 
meet the maximum demand for any given irrigation period within the Customer’s property at 
a minimum pressure of 50 psi unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the District. The 
pressures in the distribution system will fluctuate at higher and lower pressures from those 
stated above as systems turn‐on and shut‐ off, designers shall appropriately account for these 
conditions in the design of the Customer’s distribution systems. 
The District is permitted for consumptive use of water through the South Florida Water 
Management District, which regulates the amount of water that can be used for irrigation 
purposes. The amount of supplemental irrigation water allocated varies by month depending 
on the expected rainfall for a given month. The supplemental allocation varies from 0.76‐
inches in January to 4.58‐ inches in May. 
A table of projected water use by month is provided in the District’s “Irrigation System Design 
and Construction Standards”, latest edition. For all irrigation service areas, the District’s 
irrigation system is designed to supply on average 0.68 inches per week (gross) during a 3‐
day per week, 12‐ hour per day irrigation period for any Customer. 
Each Customer will be provided with an allocation of irrigation water during times assigned by 
the District. Such allocation and irrigation times shall be identified by the District in writing on 
the approved Application for Irrigation Service. The irrigation within each development must 
be controlled by time clocks at individual homes or in larger blocks. It is the responsibility of 
the Customer to design its internal irrigation distribution system to operate within the 
parameters of the irrigation distribution system of the District as described above. Assistance 
in determining the best application time will be provided by the Irrigation District staff. 

The irrigation system will operate 24‐hours per day to allow for maintenance of irrigation 
systems as required during the day, but all irrigation shall be performed at night. If any 
irrigation system needs to be operated outside of the assigned times for maintenance or grow‐
in of new landscape material, the user shall notify the District. Variances and waivers from the 
requirements of the Tradition CDD No. 1 Policies and Procedures Manual may be granted by 
the Board subject to the provisions and limitations contained in Section 120.542, Florida 
Statutes, and Chapter 28-104, Variance or Waiver, of the Uniform Rules or Procedure. Copies 
of Section 120.542 and Chapter 28-104 are available from the District Manager. 
Each Customer shall be provided irrigation on a set time and flow basis to facilitate spreading 
the flow to the greatest extent possible. Each Customer will be provided water based on 
number of living units, amount of irrigated area, common areas, and other factors deemed 
pertinent. Typical criteria are show in Table 2. 
At the District’s option, a central radio based control system opens a supply valve at each 
individual development for a predetermined period of time. Each development will also be  
allocated a definite amount of water for each application period. When the predetermined time 
of flow is met the water service will close. It is imperative that individual subdivision irrigation 

43



designers and operators design each irrigation system correctly and amount of water used for 
each unit is correct to ensure each unit receives the proper amount of supplemental irrigation. 
Otherwise, all irrigation cycles may not receive the proper amount of irrigation water. 

TABLE 2:TRADITION IRRIGATION SERVICE SIZING 
Service Size Flow Range (gpm) Irrigated Area (acres) 

From To From To 
2-inch 50 100 0 10 

3-inch 100 250 10 25 

4-inch 250 500 25 50 

6-inch 500 1000 50 100 

8-inch 1000 1800 100 200 

*Based on average residential values 

34.0 IRRIGATION SCHEDULE 
The District has established in the SFWMD permit an irrigation schedule for each Customer 
serviced by the District. The irrigation schedules shall be strictly adhered to. 

34.1 The District will not change, alter or modify the schedule without good cause, and will 
provide written or electronic notification of such change, alteration or modification at 
least 48 hours before such change alteration or modification shall take place. 
Variances and waivers from the requirements of the Tradition CDD No. 1 Policies and 
Procedures Manual may be granted by the Board subject to the provisions and 
limitations contained in Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28-104, 
Variance or Waiver, of the Uniform Rules or Procedure. Copies of Section 120.542 
and Chapter 28-104 are available from the District Manager 

34.2 The Customer shall not change, alter or modify the schedule without approval of the 
District; provided, however, the Customer shall have the right, without the approval of 
the District, to change, alter or modify the schedule as needed to its portion of the 
irrigation system in a manner to sufficiently serve its landscaping if such actions are in 
accordance with the irrigation schedule established in the South Florida Water 
Management permit, the Customer’s Application and Irrigation Service Agreement, 
and any other agreements that may have been entered into between the District and 
the Customer. 

35.0 RATE SCHEDULE ADJUSTMENTS  
Rates shall be determined based on an independent rate study performed by a qualified and 
reputable utility rate, financial and management firm. Rates may be increased no more than 
once per calendar year, based upon the ”Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers 
(CPI‐U): U.S. City Average, by expenditure category and commodity  and service group” for 
the “Water and sewer and trash collection services” expenditure category as published for 

44



the month of October of each year. The District will provide written or electronic notice of 
rate schedule adjustments no later than October 31, and any increase shall not take effect 
until on or after January 1 of the following year. 

36.0  SYSTEM CAPACITY CHARGE  
Capacity charges are suspended until such a time as additional capacity related capital 
investment is required for the System in excess of the historical fees collected. 

37.0 RESERVATION OF CAPACITY 
Upon execution of an application and/or  agreement  for service by the District and the 
Customer, payment of all costs, charges, and fees by the Customer required by the District 
and execution of the application and/or agreement(s), the District will reserve Irrigation Water 
Capacity, as set forth in the application and/or agreement(s). The District is not obligated to 
provide excess irrigation water to the Customer above that necessary to meet the demand 
for irrigated acreage physically connected to the system. The District may allocate irrigation 
water capacity reserved for the Customer to other developers or Customers if the District (i) 
has funds available to replace the facilities utilized by other such Customers; (ii) the District 
has preliminary approval by governmental agencies for the replacement facilities; and (iii) 
the anticipated completion date for the new/replacement facilities is adequate to meet the 
demand of existing Customers in accordance with the plan of development delivered to the 
District. If the District allocates reserved capacity to other developers, the District will notify 
the Customer that has reserved capacity that the Customers has 30 days to file an objection 
with the District, which must include notice that the Customer will need the reserved capacity 
with the indicated period. 

38.0 GUARANTEED REVENUES‐  
Customers that have reserved capacity and have not physically connected and are not 
actively irrigating the irrigated acreage shall pay a Guaranteed Revenue to the District. The 
Guaranteed Revenue shall be paid monthly based on the unit price per irrigated acre set 
forth in Appendix A. 

39.0 WATER CONSERVATION POLICY 
It is the policy of the Tradition Community Development District No. 1, to conserve our water 
resources, not only in the drier months, but also throughout the year. Even though the water 
being delivered to the Customer is not of potable quality, it is important that all Customers 
do their part in protecting the water resources in this area. The restrictive covenants prohibit 
individual private wells within the development; therefore, all irrigation water users must 
cooperate in conserving water for current and future users of the Community. 
In implementing its water conservation program, the Tradition Community Development 
District No. 1 has adopted the following as part of its water conservation policy: 

39.1 The Customer should make sure landscape is not being over watered. Over 
watering is not good for water conservation or for the lawn and shrubs. The 
South Florida Water Management District publication, "Water Use 
Restrictions –Phase 1" provides guidelines for watering and has been 
adopted a part of this policy. 

 

45



39.2 The Customer is encouraged but not required to utilize an adequate supply 
of mulch in its planting beds which helps retain moisture. 

39.3 Natural vegetation should be used in the landscape plan wherever possible. 
Native plants require less water. Natural areas which have been preserved 
should not be irrigated. 

39.4 The Customer is encouraged to utilize xeriscape landscape practices. 
Xeriscape is an excellent way to have a beautiful landscape that saves 
between 30% and 80% of the water used to irrigate a traditional landscape. 

Water shortage generally occurs in South Florida during the spring months, when the 
evapo‐ transporation is high and rainfall is low. Water shortage can also occur, however, 
throughout an entire year, particularly if summer rains are below normal. The Tradition 
Community Development District No. 1 and the Customers are required to comply with 
any water restriction requirements imposed by South Florida Water Management District 
and local government. 

46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

SCHEDULE OF RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

47



TRADITION CDD NO. 1: TIER 1 USERS IRRIGATION RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 
Monthly Volume and Excess Usage Charge 
 Excess Level 1 

$2.18 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
09/30/2020) 

$2.21 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
10/01/2020) 

Excess Level 2 
$3.27 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

09/30/2020) 
$3.31 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

10/01/2020) 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Account Setup Charge $20.00 

Account Transfer Charge $20.00 

Initial Connection Fee 

 Controller (Piccolo) $2,000 

 Valve/Meter 
  1.5 inch $750 
  2 inch  $750 
  3 inch  $1100 
  4 inch  $1750 
  6 inch  $3200 
  8 inch  $4500 

Rules and Regulation Violation Charge  $50.00 per occurrence 

Damage to CDD Facilities Caused by Customer  Actual Cost of Repair 

Late Fee Charge    5.0% of balance due, not to exceed $250/month 

Finance Charge   18.0% per annum on balance more than 30 days past due 

Plan Review / Inspection Fee  $2500 
Includes first inspection.  Re-inspections billed at hourly service call rate. 

Meter Test Fee   Under 2-inch  $75.00 
   2-inch and above Actual Cost of Test 

Returned Check Fee (not sufficient funds)  $25.00 

Reconnection Charge 
(normal business hours)   $85.00 
(outside of normal hours)  $125.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Transfer of Service Charge   $30.00 

Service Call Charge (1) 
(normal business hours)   $125.00/hr 
(outside of normal hours)  $150.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Terms of Payment:  Bills are due and payable when rendered and become delinquent if not paid 
within 20 days.  After a minimum of 10 days written notice, service may be discontinued. 

(1) Charged only if Service Problem is NOT the fault of CDD. 

48



TRADITION CDD NO. 1: TIER 2 AND 3 USERS IRRIGATION RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 
Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per Irrigated Acre 

Tier 2 Customers $90.63 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $46.75 / month 

Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per ERU (single family) 
Tier 2 Customers $10.41 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $  5.37 / month 

Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per0.4  ERU (multi- family) 
Tier 2 Customers $  4.16 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $  2.15 / month 

Monthly Base Facility Charge (2) Per0.1 ERU (apartment) 
Tier 2 Customers $  1.04 / month 
Tier 3 Customers $  0.54 / month 

(2) Monthly Base Charge will be invoiced regardless of volume of water used. 

 

Monthly Volume and Excess Usage Charge (Tier 2 and Tier 3 Customers) 
 Excess Level 1 

$2.18 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
09/30/2020) 

$2.21 per 1,000 gallons for usage >90,000 but < 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 
10/01/2020) 

Excess Level 2 
$3.27 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

09/30/2020) 
$3.31 per 1,000 gallons for usage > or = 140,000 gallons per irrigated acre (through 

10/01/2020) 

Miscellaneous Charges 

Account Setup Charge  $20.00 

Account Transfer Charge $20.00 

Initial Connection Fee 

 Controller (Piccolo) $2,000 

 Valve/Meter 
  1.5 inch $750 
  2 inch  $750 
  3 inch  $1100 
  4 inch  $1750 
  6 inch  $3200 
  8 inch  $4500 

Rules and Regulation Violation Charge          $50.00 per occurrence 

Damage to CDD Facilities Caused by Customer   Actual Cost of Repair 

Late Fee Charge    5.0% of balance due, not to exceed $250/month 

Finance Charge   18.0% per annum on balance more than 30 days past due 

Plan Review / Inspection Fee  $2500 
Includes first inspection.  Re-inspections billed at hourly service call rate. 

 

49



TRADITION CDD NO. 1: TIER 2 AND 3 USERS IRRIGATION RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES 
(Continued) 

 

Meter Test Fee   Under 2-inch  $75.00 
   2-inch and above Actual Cost of Test 

Returned Check Fee (not sufficient funds)   $25.00 

Reconnection Charge 
(normal business hours)  $85.00 
(outside of normal hours) $125.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Transfer of Service Charge    $30.00 

Service Call Charge (1) 
(normal business hours)  $125.00 
(outside of normal hours) $150.00/hr  1 hr min. 

Terms of Payment:  Bills are due and payable when rendered and become delinquent if not paid 
within 20 days.  After a minimum of 10 days written notice, service may be discontinued. 

(1) Charged only if Service Problem is NOT the fault of CDD. 

 

50



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

STANDARD FORMS 

 

 

51



CUSTOMER GUARANTEE DEPOSIT RECEIPT ACCOUNT NO. 
 

I HEREBY REQUEST AND AUTHORIZE THE TRADITION CDD NO. 1 TO SUPPLY IRRIGATION 
SERVICE TO THE BELOW DESCRIBED PROPERTY UNTIL RECEIPT OF FORMAL NOTICE 
FROM ME REQUESTING DISCONTINUANCE OF SUCH IRRIGATION SERVICE. 
 
I AGREE TO PROMPTLY PAY FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE AT THE RATES AND WITHIN THE 
TIME PERIODS DELINEATED IN THE DISTRICT’S RULES AND REGULATIONS. 
 
I HEREBY AGREE TO ABIDE BY THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE TRADITION CDD 
NO. 1. 

 
SIGNATURE:   DATE:     

 
NAME:     

 
SERVICE ADDRESS:      

 
BILLING ADDRESS:      

 
CITY:   STATE:   zip:   

 

DEPOSIT AMOUNT:   □ Check No:   □ Other:      
 

RECEIVED BY:    Date:     
 

TO GUARANTEE THE PAYMENT OF ANY AND ALL INDEBTEDNESS FOR IRRIGATION 
SERVICES WHICH MAY BE OR BECOME DUE TO TRADITION CDD NO. 1, (HEREINAFTER 
CALLED THE CDD) BY SAID CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER AGREES THAT SUCH DEPOSIT OR 
ANY PART THEREOF MAY BE APPLIED BY THE CDD AT ANY TIME IN SATISFACTION OF 
SAID GUARANTEE. THAT AFTER SUCH APPLICATION, THE REMAINDER THEREOF MAY 
BE APPLIED IN DISCHARGE OF ANY INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CUSTOMER TO THE CDD 
WHATSOEVER AND THAT THE CDD MAY USE SAID DEPOSITS AS IF THE CDD WERE THE 
ABSOLUTE OWNER THEREOF. UPON DISCONTINUANCE OF ANY OR ALL SERVICES 
COVERED BY THIS DEPOSIT AND THE PRESENTATION OF THE RECEIPT AND PROPER 
IDENTIFICATION, THE CDD AGREES TO REFUND TO THE CUSTOMER THAT PORTION OF 
THE DEPOSIT APPLYING TO THE SERVICE OR SERVICES DISCONTINUED, LESS ANY 
AMOUNTS THEN DUE THE DISTRICT. THIS DEPOSIT SHAL NOT PRECLUDE THE CDD 
FROM DISCONTINUING FOR NONPAYMENT ANY AND ALL SERVICES COVERED BY THIS 
DEPOSIT REGARDLESS OF THE SUFFICIENCY OF SAID DEPOSIT TO COVER SUCH 
INDEBTEDNESS FOR SUCH SERVICES. 

52



APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE 
 

Type of Service: Residential General 
 

Applicant Information: 
 

Applicant Name:        

Billing Address:                                                                                                                                                                       

City:  State:   Zip Code:                               

Phone Number:   Fax:   

Email:     

Social Security Number/Driver License or Tax Identification Number:   

  

Applicant/Agents Signature:   
Agents Name:    

 
Service Location: 

 

Service Address:        

Subdivision:   Plat Book:  Pages:  

Block Number:  Lot Number:  Unit Number:    

====================================================================================================== 
(To be completed by TIC) 

====================================================================================================== 
Service Information: 
Requested Meter Size: 1” 1‐1/2” 2” 3” 4” 6” 8” Other:       

Service Irrigable Area:  Square Feet  

 Acres Annual Allocation:  M.G.   Avg. 

Monthly Allocation    M.G. 

Max. Month Allocation  M.G.   Estimated Peak Demand:  GPM (during hours of operation) 

General Service Applicants shall submit three (3) sets of construction documents (plans and specifications). 
 
 

Account Number:   Service Start 
Date: 

   

Meter ID No:   Size:    Service End Date:    

System Capacity Charge: $   Fees: $   
 
Total Amount Due: 

Deposit Amount: $  
 

$   

 
Approved By:    Date:    

53



 

Note: 
1. Upon signature by the applicant and approval by Tradition Community Development District No. 1  (the 

“CDD”), the applicant shall become a Customer of the CDD and agrees to timely pay for irrigation 
service and abide by the rules and regulations of the CDD as contained in the “Tradition Community 
Development District No. 1  Irrigation Water Rules and Regulations”, latest edition. 

2. Application to Construct in the “Tradition Irrigation System Design and Construction Standards”, 
latest edition must be consistent with this Application for Service. 

 
TRADITION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 1 

 
By:   
Name:  
Title:   

CUSTOMER: 
 
By:  
Name:   

  
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
) SS: 

COUNTY OF ) 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me, an officer duly authorized in the State aforesaid 
and in the County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, the foregoing instrument was acknowledged 
before me  by  ,   the       of TRADITION   

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 1, a community development district created pursuant to 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, freely and voluntarily under authority duly vested in him/her by said corporation 
and that the seal affixed thereto is the true corporate seal of said corporation.  He/she , by means of __ 
physical presence or ___ online notarization and ____ is personally known to me or who has produced_____ 
 as identification. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this  day of 

  , 20 . 
 
 

Notary Public 
 
 

Typed, printed or stamped name of Notary Public 
 

My Commission Expires: 

54



 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
) SS: 

COUNTY OF ) 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me, an officer duly authorized in the State 
aforesaid and in the County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, the foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before  me  by  , by means of __ physical presence or ___ online 
notarization,  and who is personally known to me or who has produced 
  __________ as identification. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this  day 
of 

  , 20  . 
 
 

Notary Public 
 
 

Typed, printed or stamped name of Notary Public 
 

My Commission Expires: 

55



 11:35 AM

 06/23/20
 Tradition Irrigation

 Open Invoices
 As of May 31, 2020

Customer Num Due Date Aging Open Balance Comments

1. Art in Houses, LLC

2019-778 01/28/2020 124 87.70

Total Art in Houses, LLC 87.70 6/25 customer will bring current in July.

2. Aycock at Tradition

2020-972 04/26/2020 35 201.62

Total Aycock at Tradition 201.62 (April)  Follow-Up Contact in Progress

3. Chesterbrook Academy

2020-978 04/26/2020 35 132.72

2020-1036 05/24/2020 7 132.72

Total Chesterbrook Academy 265.44 (2 Months)  Follow-Up Contact in Progress.

4. Cleveland Clinic Florida

2020-1039 05/24/2020 7 438.48

Total Cleveland Clinic Florida 438.48 (1 Month) 30 Days Out

5. Covelli Florida Properties, Inc.

2020-1040 05/24/2020 7 95.92

Total Covelli Florida Properties, Inc. 95.92 (1 Month)  30 Days Out.

6. Del Webb at Tradition Homeowners Assoc

2020-921 03/24/2020 68 2,305.36

2020-1042 05/24/2020 7 2,305.36

Total Del Webb at Tradition Homeowners Assoc 4,610.72 (2 Months)  Follow-Up Contact in Progress.

7. Fast Developments, LLC

2019-177 03/31/2019 427 31.11

2019-240 04/28/2019 399 31.11

2019-299 05/26/2019 371 31.11

2019-363 06/30/2019 336 31.11

2019-424 07/21/2019 315 31.11

2019-485 08/25/2019 280 31.11

2019-548 09/26/2019 248 31.11

2019-610 10/22/2019 222 31.11

2019-671 11/25/2019 188 31.11

2019-732 12/24/2019 159 31.11

2019-793 01/28/2020 124 31.11

Total Fast Developments, LLC 342.21  (2/19 to 12/19 Guar. Rev. Amt.) Use Attorney.

8. Heritage Oaks

884 02/03/2019 483 306.85

2019-117 03/03/2019 455 306.85

2019-179 03/31/2019 427 306.85

2019-242 04/28/2019 399 306.85

2019-301 05/26/2019 371 306.85

2019-365 06/30/2019 336 306.85

2019-426 07/21/2019 315 306.85

2019-487 08/25/2019 280 306.85

2019-550 09/26/2019 248 306.85

2019-612 10/22/2019 222 306.85

Total Heritage Oaks 3,068.50 10/1/19 property escheated to County-foreclosure.

9. Heron Preserves

2020-1048 05/24/2020 7 222.95

Total Heron Preserves 222.95 (1 Month)  30 Days Out.

10. Hilton - Homewood Suites, PSL

2020-1049 05/24/2020 7 342.56

Total Hilton - Homewood Suites, PSL 342.56 6/25 Hand delivered to Manager onsite.

11. Innovo Development Group, LLC

2020-993 04/26/2020 35 185.96

Total Innovo Development Group, LLC 185.96 (April)  Follow-Up Contact in Progress.

12. RDP II LLC

2020-940 03/24/2020 68 88.09

Total RDP II LLC 88.09 (March)  Follow-Up Contact in Progress.

13. Recovery Sports Grill

2020-941 03/24/2020 68 74.39

2020-1004 04/26/2020 35 74.39

2020-1061 05/24/2020 7 74.39

Total Recovery Sports Grill 223.17 6/25 Hand delivered to premises (closed).

14. Seven Restaurants, LLC

2020-1003 04/21/2020 40 88.09

Total Seven Restaurants, LLC 88.09 (April)  Follow-Up Contact in Progress.

15. The Lakes at Tradition

2020-885 03/02/2020 90 12,198.41

2020-951 03/24/2020 68 12,198.41

2020-1014 04/26/2020 35 12,198.41

2020-1072 05/24/2020 7 12,198.41

Total The Lakes at Tradition 48,793.64 6/30 notice of intent to withhold service issued.

16. The Preserves Phase I & II

2020-877 03/02/2020 90 157.58

2020-952 03/24/2020 68 202.41

2020-1015 04/26/2020 35 157.58

2020-1073 05/24/2020 7 291.67

Total The Preserves Phase I & II 809.24 6/11 customer will bring current in July.

17. Victoria Parc

2019-829 01/28/2020 124 297.64

Total Victoria Parc 297.64 6/11 customer will bring current in July.

18. Victoria Parc 2

2019-583 09/26/2019 248 92.05

2019-646 10/22/2019 222 92.05

Total Victoria Parc 2 184.10 6/25 email delivered to HOA Manager.

19. Westcliffe Estates HOA

2019-835 01/28/2020 124 112.67

2020-894 03/02/2020 90 113.30

2020-967 03/24/2020 68 108.28

2020-1026 04/26/2020 35 113.30

2020-1084 05/24/2020 7 113.30

Total Westcliffe Estates HOA 560.85 6/25 customer will bring current in July.

TOTAL 60,906.88

 Page 1 of 1
56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88


	Cover
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Minutes (10.2.19)
	Review of Procedures 
	Past Due Clients
	Financial Report May 2020



